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QIDJFHMF>>FIKJGIJGGEJ>LGIICTJY@@CFLFGFIK>JFDEJ>GFCCJDEFKNJFLLE@GEHT 

XFDCEMJXEDDEJJGF>JFGJCEF>GJ:JGEFLGED>JFKJEFLGJLCF>>JIQJ:<o:lJ>G?HEKG>JOFJNEKEDFCJEH?LFGFIK 

GEFLGEDJFKHJFJXEDDEJJCFKN?FNEJGEFLGEDPJDE>?CGFKNJFKJFJ>G?HEKGoGIoGEFLGEDJDFGFIJIQJ;kI;JIDJ;mI;T 
1?DFKNJXEDDEJJFKHJFGJIGGEDJGFME>JGGDI?NGI?GJGGEJHFHVJGGEDEJJFCCJDEJkJGEFLGED>JFKJFJDIIMJDE>?CGFKN 

FKJFKJEEEKJ>MFCCEDJ>G?HEKGoGIoGEFLGEDJDFGFIJIQJF@@DIÅFMFGECHJAI;T 

XFDCEMJXEDDEJJGF>JFKJEÅGEKHEHJHFHJOlI77JFTMTJGIJkIk7J@TMTPJFKHJEÅGEKHEHJHEFDJO;A7JHFH>JIQ 
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XFDCEMJXEDDEJJIQQED>JFJK?DG?DFKNJFKHJDFNIDI?>JFLFHEMFLJEKEFDIKMEKGVJJFGGJFHMFKF>GDFGID>JFKH 

GEFLGED>JGECHJFLLI?KGFDCEJQIDJGFNGJ>G?HEKGJFLGFEEEMEKGTJ[FLGJ>G?HEKGJFGJXFDCEMJXEDDEJJDELEFEE> 
GJIJGI?D>JIQJFK>GD?LGFIKJFKJ[KNCF>GJ=FKN?FNEJYDG>VJIKEJGI?DJIQJFK>GD?LGFIKJFKJMFGGJFKHJIKEJGI?DJIQ 
FK>GD?LGFIKJEÅLC?>FEECHJFKJXEDDEJJHFFCHVJF>JJECCJF>J;l7JMFK?GE>JJEERCHJIQJ>ILFFCJ>G?HFE>JFK>GD?LGFIK 

FKHJ;kÄJMFK?GE>JJEERCHJIQJ>LFEKLEJFK>GD?LGFIKTJ¾KJFHHFGFIKJGIJGGEJ>GFKHoFCIKEJXEDDEJJLCF>>VJFCC 
>?DÆELG>JOEÅLE@GJQIDJ[KNCF>GJCFKN?FNEJFDG>JFKHJMFGGPJFDEJLIKH?LGEHJFKJ[KNCF>GJF>JJECCJF>JFK 

XEDDEJJFCCIJFKNJQIDJ>G?HEKG>JGIJDEJQ?CCHJFMMED>EHJFKJGGEJ>G?HHJIQJGGEJGFDNEGJCFKN?FNETJZI?KHFKN 
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JFGGJGGEJWLGIMD?DNJCEKGEDJQIDJZE>EFDLGJFKJ-CFLRJC?CG?DEJQIL?>FKNJIKJXFDCEMÇ>JGF>GIDHJF>JFJQILFC 
@IFKGJIQJMFNDFGFIKJFKHJFMMFNDFGFIKT 
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ÉFDFFDCEJ; /ZZJFKHJ-FCFKLEHJ=FGEDFLHIJUEJJFCCJ?>EJ/ZZJF>JI?D 
IEEDFDLGFKNJFK>GD?LGFIKFCJMIHECJJFGGJCIC?MDFF 
0KFEED>FGHÇ>JjEFLGED>JCICCENEJZEFHED>JFKHJUDFGED> 
UIDR>GI@JOZUUPVJFJDFCFKLEHJCFGEDFLHJF@@DIFLGVJGGE 
MIHECJQIDJFK>GD?LGFIKJFKJ[=YTJjGEHJ>?@@IDGJDIGG
-CIIMÇ>JjFÅIKIMHJDHJLGFCCEKNFKNJ>G?HEKG>JGI 
EKNFNEJFKJFKFCHSFKNV 
EEFC?FGFKNJFKHJLDEFGFKNJF>JJECCJF>JXFNNFK>JFKH 
,LjFNGEÇ>J0KHED>GFKHFKNJDHJ1E>FNKJJGEDEJGGE 
?KHEDCHFKNJ@DEMF>EJIQJFK>GD?LGFIKJ>GI?CHJDEJGEFLGFKN 
QIDJ?KHED>GFKHFKNTJ/ZZJFKHJZUUJ>GFQGJGGEJLINKFGFEE 
CIFHJ>CIJCHJFKH 
@?D@I>EQ?CCHJ>IJ>G?HEKG>JNDFH?FCCHJF>>?ME 
FKLDEF>FKNJDE>@IK>FDFCFGHJQIDJGGEFDJCEFDKFKNJFKH
DELIMEJLIM@EGEKGVJFKHE@EKHEKGJCEFDKED>TÄJ/ZZJF> 
FCFNKEHJJFGGJI?DJ@GFCI>I@GHJGGFGJGGEDEJF>JFJ>GDIKN 
FKGEDDECFGFIKJDEGJEEKJLIKGEKG 
RKIJCEHNEJFKHJGFNGEDJIDHEDJGGFKRFKNTJUGEKJ>G?HEKG> 
FLGFEECHJ@FDGFLF@FGEJFKJGGEFDJIJKJCEFDKFKNJGGDI?NG 
HF>L?>>FIKJFKHJLICCFDIDFGFIKVJGGEHJEKNFNEJMIDEJQ?CCH 
FKJGFNGEDJIDHEDJ>RFCC>TJjGEJ@EEDJCEFDKFKNJF>@ELGJIQ 
GGE>EJMEGGIHICINFE>JF>JGFNGCHJEQQELGFEEJFKJJIDRFKN 
JFGGJLCF>>DIIM>JIQJGEGEDINEKEI?>J>G?HEKG>V 
FKLC?HFKNJWU1<V 
[==>8JFKHJjFGCEJ¾J>G?HEKG>JF>JJECCJF>JFLLECEDFGEH 
CEFDKED>TJYGJXXVJ@EHFNINFLFCJ>GDFGENFE>JIQJZUUJFDE 
FKLID@IDFGEHJFKGIJFCCJLIDEJ>?DÆELG>TJ/ZZJFKHJZUU 
@DIEFHEJGGEJI@@IDG?KFGHJQIDJGEFLGED>JGIJHFQQEDEKGFFGE 
FK>GD?LGFIKJDHJ?>FKNJLIM@DEGEK>FEEJFKHJIKNIFKN 
F>>E>>MEKGJHFGFJODIGGJQIDMFCJFKHJFKQIDMFCPJGI 
FHEKGFQHJ>G?HEKG>ÇJKEEH>VJGFFCIDJFK>GD?LGFIKJFKH
HEGEDMFKEJQCEÅFDCEJ>MFCCJNDI?@JLIM@I>FGFIKTJjGE>E 
>GDFGENFE>JJFCCJDEJ?>EHJFKJFCCJLIKGEKGJFDEF>TJZUU 
>?@@IDG>JFCCJCEFDKED>VJ@FDGFL?CFDCHJ[==>VJFKJGGEJGGDEE
HFMEK>FIK>JIQJCFKN?FNEJFLÈ?F>FGFIKIJGGEJ@DIH?LGFIK 
IQJCFKN?FNEJOCF>GEKFKNVJJFGLGFKNVJFKHJ>GFDFKNPVJGGE 
?KHED>GFKHFKNJIQJCFKN?FNEJO>I?KH>JFKHJMEFKFKN>PV 
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FCI?H>JFKHJ>GFDEHJDEFHFKN>J>?@@IDGJGGEJ@DIH?LGFIK 
IQJCFKN?FNEJOGIJCF>GEKVJJFGLGJFKHJ>GFDEPTJ1FFCH 
DE@EGFGFIKJIQJ>GFDEHJDEFHFKN>J>?@@IDG>J>G?HEKG>JFK
IDFCJFKHJJDFGGEKJCFKN?FNEJFLÈ?F>FGFIKTJjGF>J@DILE>>JF> 
>LFQQICHEHJGIJN?FHEJ>G?HEKG>JGIJ?KHEDGFREJM?LGJIQ 
GGEJ>GFDEHJDEFHFKNJDH 
GGEJEKHJIQJGGEJJEERTJUIDHJUIDRJCE>>IK>VJHEDFEEH 
HFDELGCHJQDIMJGGEJ>GFDEHJDEFHFKN>VJFHHDE>>JGGE
?KHED>GFKHFKNJFKHJQ?KLGFIKJIQJCFKN?FNEJDHJEÅ@CIDFKN
>I?KH>JFKHJMEFKFKN>JFKJGGEJLIKGEÅGJIQJDEFC 
CFGEDFG?DETJjGE>EJ@DFLGFLE>JFDE
EQQELGFEEJQIDJ[==>JF>JJECCÊJGGEHJFDEJGGEJ>FME
GELGKFÈ?E>J?>EHJFKJFJ>GECGEDEHJ[KNCF>GJFMMED>FIK 
@DINDFMTJjGEJ/ZZJFKHJZUUJEKEFDIKMEKGJ@DIEFHE>
LIK>F>GEKLHJFKJDI?GFKE>VJEÅ@EDFEKLE>JFKHJFKGEDFLGFIK> 
JFGGJ@EED>TJYLLI?KGFDCEJjFCRJFKHJ>G?HEKGJ>GFDFKNJFDE 
@FDGJIQJGGEJFK>GD?LGFIKFCJ>GD?LG?DETJjEFLGED>JFDE 
LINKFSFKGJIQJ>?@@IDGFKNJ>G?HEKG>ÇJKEEH>JDEQIDE 
>G?HEKG>JFDEJ>EKGJIQQJGIJJIDRJFKHE@EKHEKGCHJGI 
@DFLGFLEJFJ>RFCCJIDJ>GDFGENHJGGFGJGF>JDEEKJMIHECEHJQID 
GGEMTJ[==>JFKHJIGGEDJFGoDF>RJ>G?HEKG>JJFCCJDELEFEE 
FHHFGFIKFCJGEFLGEDJN?FHFKLETJWMFCCJNDI?@JFK>GD?LGFIK 
JFCCJILL?DJHFFCHJFKHJJFCCJQ?DGGEDJQIL?>JIKJ[==>ÇJFKH 
IGGEDJ>@ELFFCJ@I@?CFGFIK>ÇJKEEH>T 

ÉFDFFDCEJ: XEDDEJJ=FKN?FNEJ¾K>GD?LGFIKIJXXJJFCCJ@DIEFHE
FK>GD?LGFIKJFKJ,IHEDKJXEDDEJJDENFKKFKNJFKJÂTJjGF> 
JFCCJDEGGEDJ@DE@FDEJI?DJ>G?HEKG>JGIJDEJFLGFEE
@FDGFLF@FKG>JFKJGGEJNCIDFCJLIMM?KFGHTJYJ?KFÈ?E 
LIM@IKEKGJGGFGJEKDFLGE>JGGEJ>G?HHJIQJGGEJXEDDEJ
CFKN?FNEJF>JGGEJEÅ@CIDFGFIKJIQJGGEJL?CG?DEVJ>ILFEGHV 
FKHJNEINDF@GHJIQ 
LIKGEM@IDFDHJ¾>DFECJFKJIDHEDJGIJMIDEJF?GGEKGFLFCCH 
FKHJEQQELGFEECHJGEFLGJXEDDEJTJjGF>JFCFNKMEKGJIQ 
CFKN?FNEJFKHJ>ILFFCJ>G?HFE>J@DE@FDE>J>G?HEKG>JGIJDE
Q?CCHJCFGEDFGEJFKJGGEJ>ELIKHJCFKN?FNETJYMEDFLFKJÂo;: 
>LGIIC>JCFNJFKJGGEJGEFLGFKNJIQJQIDEFNKJCFKN?FNE>V 
@?GGFKNJI?DJLGFCHDEKJFGJFJLIM@EGFGFEEJHF>FHEFKGFNET 
¿?DJQIL?>JIKJQIDEFNK 
CFKN?FNEJCEFDKFKNJJFCCJDEJFJ>@DFKNDIFDHJQIDJI?D 
>G?HEKG>JGIJGFEEJMIDEJQFLFCFGHJFKJGGEFDJ@?D>?FGJIQ 
FHHFGFIKFCJCFKN?FNE>JFKJGGEJQ?G?DEVJFKJFHHFGFIKJGI 
DELIMFKNJDFCFKN?FCJFKHJDFoCFGEDFGETJWG?HHFKNJQIDEFNK 
CFKN?FNE>JFC>IJGEC@>JQI>GEDJFJNDEFGEDJHE@GGJIQ 
?KHED>GFKHFKNJIQJGGEJ[KNCF>GJCFKN?FNEJJFGG 
DEFKQIDLEMEKGJIQJLIKLE@G>J>?LGJF>JNDFMMFGFLFC 
LIK>GD?LGFIKVJKI?KoEEDDJFNDEEMEKGVJFKHJEILFD?CFDH 
EÅ@FK>FIKTJBYJFKLID@IDFGE>JDID?>GJF>>E>>MEKGJGIIC> 
QIDJDIGGJQIDMFGFEEJFKHJ>?MMFGFEEJEEFC?FGFIK>T
CCF>>E>JFDEJLIKH?LGEHJEÅLC?>FEECHJFKJGGEJQIDEFNK 
CFKN?FNEJ>IJ>G?HEKG>JGEFDJGGEJCFKN?FNEJF>JFGJF> 
KFG?DFCCHJ>@IREKÊJEILFD?CFDHJFKHJEÅ@DE>>FIK>JFDE 
MIHECEHJQIDJ>G?HEKG> 
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JGIJGGEKJDENFKJGIJ@DFLGFLEJJFGGJGGEFDJ@EED>TJBYJF> 
Q?CCHJLIK>F>GEKGJJFGGJ/ZZVJ@DIEFHFKNJFJ>EFMCE>> 
GDFK>FGFIKJQIDJ>G?HEKG>JQDIMJGGEFDJFK>GD?LGFIKJFK 
XEDDEJJGIJGGEFDJFK>GD?LGFIKJFKJIGGEDJLIDEJ>?DÆELG>T 
WG?HEKG>JJFCCJDELEFEEJIKEGI?DJIQJHFFCHJXEDDEJ 
FK>GD?LGFIKJDHJGJIJXEDDEJJGEFLGED>JFKJEFLG 
LCF>>DIIMTJXEDDEJJF>JGGEKJFKGENDFGEHJFKJIGGED 
>?DÆELG>JFKJF?GGEKGFLJMIMEKG>JDHJGGEJXEDDEJ 
GEFLGEDJJGIJ>EDEE>JF>JFJLIoGEFLGEDJH?DFKNJWILFFC 
WG?HFE>VJWLFEKLEVJYDGVJ,?>FLJFKHJBGH>FLFCJ[H?LFGFIKT 
XEDDEJJGEFLGED>JIEED>EEJLGFCHDEKJH?DFKNJFCC 
LIMM?KFGHJNFGGEDFKN>JODDEFRQF>GVJC?KLGVJDELE>>PJFKH 
IKCHJ>@EFRJXEDDEJJGIJGGEJLGFCHDEKTJW?LGJFKGENDFGFIK 
FCCIJ>J>G?HEKG>JGIJD?FCHJQFLFCFGHJFKHJLF@FLFGHJFKJGGE 
QIDEFNKJCFKN?FNETJYKJFKGEK>FEEJQIL?>JIKJFJQIDEFNK 
CFKN?FNEJL?DDFL?C?MJ>?@@IDG>J@I>FGFEEJEEFHEKLEo 
DF>EHJCEFDKFKNJFKHJHEEECI@MEKGFCJI?GLIME>T 
ZE>EFDLGJ@IFKG>JGIJGGEJFHEFKGFNE>JLGFCHDEKJNFFK 
JGEKJGGEHJDENFKJGGEJ>G?HHJIQJFJQIDEFNKJCFKN?FNEJFG 
FKJEFDCHJFNETJYCjn=JIQQED>JGGEJQICCIJFKNJQFKHFKN>T 

ÉFDFFDCEJk =FKN?FNEJCEFDKFKNJ>?@@IDG>JFLFHEMFLJFLGFEEEMEKGI 
=FKN?FNEJCEFDKFKNJLIDDECFGE>JJFGGJGFNGEDJFLFHEMFL 
FLGFEEEMEKGJIKJ>GFKHFDHFSEHJGE>G>JFKHJF>JDEKEQFLFFC 
GIJDIGGJMIKICFKN?FCJ[KNCF>GJ>@EFRED>JFKHJ[==>JFK 
DFCFKN?FCJFKHJGJIoJFHJFMMED>FIKJ@DINDFM>T 
=FKN?FNEJCEFDKFKNJF>JDEKEQFLFFCJFKJGGEJHEEECI@MEKG 
IQJ>G?HEKG>ÇJDEFHFKNJFDFCFGFE>TJjGEDEJF>JEEFHEKLEJGGFG 
CFKN?FNEJCEFDKED>JGDFK>QEDJ>RFCC>JQDIMJIKEJCFKN?FNE 
GIJFKIGGEDTJYLLIDHFKNJGIJ/EKE>EEVJGGEDEJF>JKI
EEFHEKLEJIQJFJKENFGFEEJEQQELGJIKJGGEJFLÈ?F>FGFIKJIQ 
FLFHEMFLJ>RFCC>JQIDJ>G?HEKG>JJGIJFDEJCEFDKFKNJGJI 
KIKoKFGFEEJCFKN?FNE>J>FM?CGFKEI?>CHJGGDI?NGJH?FC 
FMMED>FIKTJ¾KJQFLGVJHI?DCEJFMMED>FIKJFKJGJI 
CFKN?FNE>JF>J@DIEEKJGIJDEJEQQELGFEEJFKJ@DIMIGFKN 
@DIQFLFEKLHJFKJGJIJ>ELIKHJCFKN?FNE>TAJjGEDEJFDEJFC>I 
LIDDECFGFIK>JDEGJEEKJ>ELIKHJCFKN?FNEJCEFDKFKNJFKH 
FKLDEF>EHJCFKN?F>GFLJFJFDEKE>>VJCFKN?FNEJCEFDKFKN 
FKHJ>G?HEKG>ÇJFDFCFGHJGIJGH@IGGE>FSEJFKJ>LFEKLEV 
LGFCHDEKÇ>J>ELIKHJCFKN?FNEJHEEECI@MEKGJFKHJGGE 
HEEECI@MEKGJIQJ@DFKGJFJFDEKE>>VJFKHJDEGJEEKJEFDCH 
CFKN?FNEJ>G?HHJFKHJGFNGEDJ>LIDE>JIKJGGEJWYj>JFKH 
YCj>T 

ÉFDFFDCEJm =FKN?FNEJCEFDKFKNJ@DIEFHE>JLINKFGFEEJDEKEQFG>JGI 
>G?HEKG>IJjGEDEJF>JEEFHEKLEJGGFGJEFDCHJCFKN?FNE 
CEFDKFKNJFM@DIEE>JLINKFGFEEJFDFCFGFE>JFKHJLIDDECFGE> 
JFGGJFKLDEF>EHJLINKFGFEEJHEEECI@MEKGJFKHJFDFCFGFE>T 
jGEDEJF>JFC>IJFJLIDDECFGFIKJDEGJEEKJDFCFKN?FCF>MJFKH 
FGGEKGFIKJLIKGDICJIKJLINKFGFEEJGF>R>VJFKGECCFNEKLEV 
MEGFoCFKN?F>GFLJ>RFCC>VJMEMIDHJ>RFCC>JFKHJ@DIDCEM 
>ICEFKNJFDFCFGHT 

ÉFDFFDCEJÄ WEDEFLEJ=EFDKFKNIJXXJFKLID@IDFGE>J>EDEFLEJCEFDKFKN 
FLDI>>JGGEJL?DDFL?C?MJFKJIDHEDJGIJDEFKQIDLEJEFC?E>JIQ 
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LFGFSEK>GF@VJLIMM?KFGHJFKHJ>ILFFCJDE>@IK>FDFCFGHJFK
GGEJLIKGEÅGJIQJFKÈ?FDHoDF>EHJCEFDKFKNJGGFGJGIKE> 
>G?HEKG>ÇJFKFCHGFLFCJ>RFCC>TJWG?HEKG>JCEFDKJFDI?GJGGE 
EFC?EJIQJFM@DIEFKNJGGEJJIDCHJFKHJDEFKNJDE>@IK>FDCE 
MEMDED>JIQJ>ILFEGHJDHJFHEKGFQHFKNJ@DIDCEM>JFKJGGEFD 
>?DDI?KHFKN>JFKHJLDEFGFKNJFKHJFM@CEMEKGFKNJ@CFK> 
GGFGJGGEHJGFEEJHEEECI@EHJGIJFHHDE>>JGGI>EJKEEH>T 
jI@FL>JLI?CHJFKLC?HEJGGEJEKEFDIKMEKGVJECHED>V 
FKFMFC>JFKJHFKNEDVJLIMM?KFGHJNDEEKJ>@FLE>V 
CFGEDFLHVJFMMFNDFKG>VJLIMM?KFGHJ>FQEGHVJ>@ELFFC 
KEEH>JFKHJHF>FDFCFGFE>VJG?KNEDJFKHJGIMECE>>KE>>T 
WEDEFLEJ=EFDKFKNJGI@FL>J>EDEEJF>JFHHEHJLIKGEKGJQID
GGEJCFGEDFLHJDCILRVJFDEJEÅ@CIDEHJFKJGGEJ>LFEKLE
L?DDFL?C?MVJFKHJEKGFKLEJGGEJEÅ@CIDFGFIKJIQJREHJFHEF> 
FKJWILFFCJWG?HFE>TJjGEJQI?DJ>GFNE>JIQJWEDEFLEJ=EFDKFKN 
OBDE@FDFGFIKVJYLGFIKVJZEQCELGFIKJFKHJ1EMIK>GDFGFIKP
HEEECI@JDE>EFDLGJ>RFCC>VJEÅ@EDFEKGFFCJCEFDKFKNVJ>RFCC>JIQ 
DEQCELGFIKJFKHJFKFCH>F>JFKHJLIKKELGJGGEJGGFKRFKN 
>G?HEKGJGIJGEDJIDJGF>JDE>@IK>FDCEJFLGFIKJFKJGGEJJIDCHT 

ÉFDFFDCEJ< ¾K>GD?LGFIKFCJW?@@IDG>JQIDJWG?HEKG>JFGJZF>RIJ/ZZJFKH 
ZUUJ>?@@IDGJHFQQEDEKGFFGEHJFK>GD?LGFIKJFCCIJFKN 
GEFLGED>JGIJ@DIEFHEJGFNGCHJFKHFEFH?FCFSEHJFK>GD?LGFIK 
FHHDE>>FKNJGGEJKEEH>JIQJ[==>VJWU1JFKHJjFGCEJ¾ 
>G?HEKG>TJXXJJFCCJGFEEJHEHFLFGEHJFK>GD?LGFIKFC 
@ED>IKKECVJ>GDFGENFE>JFKHJDE>I?DLE>JGGFGJFHHDE>> 
>G?HEKG>JFGJDF>RJ>IJGGEHJMEEGJDFNIDI?>JCEFDKFKN 
>GFKHFDH>TJXXÇ>J>GFQQFKNJ>GD?LG?DEJFKHJD?HNEGJFDE
FCFNKEHJJFGGJGGE>EJEÅ@ELGFGFIK>TJXXJJFCCJE>GFDCF>GJF 
CGFCHJWG?HHJjEFMJOCWjPJLIK>F>GFKNJIQJFK 
FHMFKF>GDFGIDVJLCF>>DIIMJGEFLGED>VJ>ILFFCJJIDREDV 
>@ELFFCJEH?LFGFIKJGEFLGEDJFKHJZEFHFKNJ>@ELFFCF>GT 
jGEJ[W=JGEFLGEDJJFCCJDEJFKEFGEHJGIJ@FDGFLF@FGEJF> 
F@@DI@DFFGETJjGEJCWjJJFCCJEKFDCEJ>LGIICJ@ED>IKKECJGI 
MEEGJGGEJKEEH>JIQJFKHFEFH?FCJLGFCHDEKJJGIJFDEJGFEFKN 
HFQQFL?CGHTJjGEJGEFMJQFLFCFGFGE>JFJ@DILE>>JGGFGJDE>?CG> 
FKJGGEJFM@CEMEKGFGFIKJIQJFLLIMMIHFGFIK>VJ>EDEFLE>V 
FKHJFKGEDEEKGFIK>JGGFGJJFCCJEKFDCEJGGEJLGFCHJGIJDE 
>?LLE>>Q?CTJjGEJCWjJJFCCJFC>IJDEJDE>@IK>FDCEJQIDJGGE 
DEN?CFDJMIKFGIDFKNJIQJFCCJjFGCEJ¾J>G?HEKG>TJ¾K 
FLLIDHFKLEJJFGGJGGEJ¾KHFEFH?FC>JJFGGJ1F>FDFCFGFE> 
[H?LFGFIKJYLGJO¾1[YPVJXXJF>JLIMMFGGEHJGIJEH?LFGFKN 
WU1JFKJGGEJCEF>GJDE>GDFLGFEEJEKEFDIKMEKGTJ¾KJFG>JQFD>G 
HEFDVJXXJJFCCJGFEEJIKEJQ?CCJGFMEJ>@ELFFCJEH?LFGFIK 
GEFLGEDTJYHHFGFIKFCJ>@ELFFCJEH?LFGFIKJGEFLGED>JJFCCJDE 
GFDEHJDF>EHJIKJGGEJK?MDEDJIQJWU1JGIJEK>?DE 
LIM@CFFKLEJJFGGJFCCJ@EDGFKEKGJCFJ>TJW@ELFFCJEH?LFGFIK 
>GFQQJJFCCJ@DIEFHEJLIK>?CGFGFIKJFKHJ>?@@IDGJGIJFKJ>MFCC 
NDI?@>JFKHJ@DIEFHEJDE>I?DLEJDIIMJ>EDEFLE>T 
CCF>>DIIMJGEFLGED>JJFCCJDEJRKIJCEHNEFDCEJFDI?GJGGE 
KEEH> 
IQJWU1ÊJJFCCJDEEFEJJGGEFDJ¾[BÇ>JFKHJDEJFKQIDMEHJIQ
GGEFDJDE>@IK>FDFCFGFE>JQIDJ@FDGFL?CFDJ>G?HEKG>ÊJDELEFEE
GGEJ>?@@IDGJGGEHJDEÈ?FDEJGIJFM@CEMEKGJFJ>G?HEKGÇ>
@DINDFMÊJFKHJFM@CEMEKGJFKHJMIHFQFLFGFIK>JID 
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ÉFDFFDCEJ8
 

FLLIMMIHFGFIK>JFKJGGEFDJLCF>>E>JFKHJFKJ>G?HEKG 
F>>E>>MEKGJ@DILEH?DE>JFKJFLLIDHFKLEJJFGGJGGE 
>G?HEKG>ÇJ¾[B>TJjEFLGED>JJFCCJDELEFEEJIKoNIFKN 
GDFFKFKNJDENFDHFKNJGGEJEH?LFGFIKJIQJWU1TJUGEK 
@I>>FDCEVJGEFLGED>JJFCCJ@FDGFLF@FGEJFKJ>G?HEKG>Ç 
EEFC?FGFIK>JFKJLICCFDIDFGFIKJJFGGJGGEJHF>GDFLGÇ> 
CIMMFGGEEJIKJW@ELFFCJ[H?LFGFIKTJXXJJFCCJGFEEJF 
W@ELFFCJ[H?LFGFIKJCIIDHFKFGIDJJGIJJFCCJIEED>EEJFCC 
ZG¾J@DINDFM>JFKHJEK>?DEJGGFGJXXJF>JFKJLIM@CFFKLE 
JFGGJY1YVJ¾1[YVJFKHJFCCJCILFCVJ>GFGEJFKHJQEHEDFC 
DEN?CFGFIK>JF@@CHFKNJGIJWU1TJnIDJ[==>VJ/ZZJFKH 
ZUUJFDEJFHEFCJQIDJ>?@@IDGFKNJ[KNCF>GJCFKN?FNE 
HEEECI@MEKGJDHJEMDEHHFKNJ[W=JFK>GD?LGFIKJH?DFKN 
ZEFHED>ÇJFKHJUDFGED>ÇJJIDR>GI@JFKHJGGEJLIDEJ>?DÆELG
FDEF>ÊJ@DIEFHFKNJMIDEJCFKN?FNEJDICEJMIHEC>ÊJFKH 
@DIEFHFKNJ>ILFFCJFKHJEMIGFIKFCJ>?@@IDGJQDIMJ@EED 
FKGEDFLGFIK>JJFGGFKJGGEJLCF>>DIIMTJjGE>EJ@DFLGFLE> 
FDEJLIKND?EKGJJFGGJ[W=JGEFLGFKNJMEGGIHICINFE>TJXX 
JFCCJGFEEJFKJ[W=JGEFLGEDJDENFKKFKNJFKJ-EFDJ;JGI 
EK>?DEJGGFGJ>G?HEKG>JDELEFEEJGFDNEGEHJFGGEKGFIKJFKH 
MIEEJGIJ[KNCF>GJ@DIQFLFEKLHJÈ?FLRCHTJ0>FKNJWGECGEDEH
[KNCF>GJ¾MMED>FIKJOW[¾PJGELGKFÈ?E>JGIJMFREJLIKGEKG 
MIDEJFLLE>>FDCEJGIJ[==>VJW[¾J>GDFGENFE>JJFCCJDE 
HECFEEDEHJHFDELGCHJGIJ[==>JFKJGGEJLCF>>DIIMJDHJGGE 
[W=JjEFLGEDJF>JJECCJF>JFKJFJ@?CCoI?GJMIHECJF> 
KELE>>FDHJGIJ@DIEFHEJMIDEJFKGEK>FEEJ>?@@IDGTJjGE 
[W=JGEFLGEDJJFCCJFC>IJDEJDE>@IK>FDCEJQIDJJIDRFKNJJFGG 
NEKEDFCJEH?LFGFIKJGEFLGED>JFKJFKLID@IDFGFKN
FHHFGFIKFCJW[¾JGELGKFÈ?E>JFKGIJGGEFDJIJKJCE>>IK 
@CFKKFKNJFKJGGEJLIDEJ>?DÆELG>TJW@ELFQFLJDEFHFKN 
FKGEDEEKGFIKJ@DINDFM>JJFCCJFC>IJDEJ?GFCFSEHJGIJ>?@@IDG 
DEFHFKNJFKHJCFKN?FNEJHEEECI@MEKGTJnIDJ>G?HEKG> 
JGIJFDEJ>GD?NNCFKNJFKJDEFHFKNJFKH9IDJJGIJFDEJFKJI?D 
jFGCEJ¾J@DINDFMVJXXJJFCCJGFEEJFJQ?CCoGFMEJZEFHFKN 
W@ELFFCF>GJDENFKKFKNJFKJGGEJQFD>GJHEFDJJGIJJFCCJJIDR 
JFGGJGGEJLCF>>DIIMJGEFLGED>JFKJDIGGJFJ@?>GoFKJFKH 
@?CCoI?GJMIHECTJW@ELFQFLJDEFHFKNJFKGEDEEKGFIK 
@DINDFM>JJFCCJDEJ?GFCFSEHTJXXÇ>J>LGEH?CEJF>JHE>FNKEH 
QIDJFKGEDEEKGFIKJ>EDEFLE>JGIJILL?DJFKJFHHFGFIKJGIV 
DFGGEDJGGFKJFKJCFE?JIQVJLIDEJFK>GD?LGFIKTJYHHFGFIKFC 
GFMEJGF>JDEEKJD?FCGJFKGIJXXÇ>J>LGEH?CEJGIJ>?@@IDG 
>GD?NNCFKNJ>G?HEKG>JFKJIGGEDJLIKGEKGJFDEF>TJ=EEECEH 
MFGEDFFC>JJFCCJDEJ@DIEFHEHJGIJ>?@@IDGJLIKGEKGJFDEF 
DEFHFKNJQIDJ>LFEKLEJFKHJ>ILFFCJ>G?HFE>TJWLFQQICHEH 
>?@@IDG>JJFCCJ@DIEFHEJFHHFGFIKFCJGEC@JQIDJMFGGEMFGFL> 
FKHJXEDDEJTJjIJQ?DGGEDJ>?@@IDGJ>G?HEKG>JJGIJFDE 
>GD?NNCFKNVJDENFKKFKNJFKJGGEJ>?MMEDJFQGEDJGGEJQFD>G 
HEFDJIQJI@EDFGFIKJFKHJEEEDHJ>?MMEDJGGEDEFQGEDVJXX 
JFCCJGICHJFJmoJEERJ>?MMEDJFLFHEMFLJFKGEDEEKGFIK 
@DINDFMTJCGFCHDEKJJFCCJDELEFEEJFK>GD?LGFIKJQIDJkJGI?D> 
EFLGJHFH 

jFMEJIKJjF>RIJXXJGF>J>EGJGFNGJ>GFKHFDH>JFKH
EÅ@ELG>JGFNGJCEEEC>JIQJFLGFEEEMEKGJQDIMJFCC 
>G?HEKG>TJjGEDEJJFCCJDEJFKLDEF>EHJGFMEJIKJGF>RJ>I 
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GGFGJFCCJ>G?HEKG>VJE>@ELFFCCHJGGI>EJFGoDF>RJIQ 
FLFHEMFLJQFFC?DEVJLFKJMEEGJ@DIQFLFEKLHJ>GFKHFDH>JFK 
FCCJ>?DÆELGJFDEF>JJGFCEJ>GFCCJFCCIJFKNJGFMEJGIJEKNFNE 
FKJ>G?HFE>JI?G>FHEJLIDEJ>?DÆELG>TJUEJJFCCJGFEEJF 
CIKNEDJ>LGIICJHFHJOlJFMomJ@MPJFKHJHEFDJO;A7 
FK>GD?LGFIKFCJHFH>PTJ[FLGJJEERVJFCCJ>G?HEKG>JJFCCJGFEE
;7JGI?D>JIQJFK>GD?LGFIKJFKJ[=YVJ<ËJGI?D>JFKJ,FGGV
IEEDJ:JGI?D>JFKJWILFFCJWG?HFE>JFKHJWLFEKLEVJÄÌJGI?D> 
FKJXEDDEJVJFKHJFGJCEF>GJA7JMFK?GE>JFKJWEDEFLE 
=EFDKFKNTJWG?HEKG>JJFCCJGFEEJDEN?CFDJFDG>VJ@GH>FLFC 
EH?LFGFIKJFKHJM?>FLJLCF>>JEFLGJJEERTJXXÇ>JCIJJ;kI; 
>G?HEKGoGEFLGEDJDFGFIJJFCCJFKLDEF>EJGGEJFMI?KGJIQ 
GFMEJFKHJFGGEKGFIKJ>G?HEKG>JGFEEJFKJIKEoIKoIKEJFKH 
>MFCCJNDI?@J>?@@IDGT 

ÉFDFFDCEJl BDIQE>>FIKFCJ1EEECI@MEKGIJZELD?FGFKNJFKHJDEGFFKFKN
GFNGJÈ?FCFGHJCEFHED>GF@JFKHJ>GFQQJFKHJLIKGFK?FKNJGI 
D?FCHJGGEFDJCEFHED>GF@JFKHJFK>GD?LGFIKFCJLF@FLFGFE>JFDE 
LDFGFLFCJGIJEK>?DEJ>?LLE>>Q?CJ>G?HEKGJI?GLIME>TJXXÇ> 
MIHECJIQJÆIDJEMDEHHEHJB1JEMDDFLE>JGGEJLIKLE@G 
GGFGJB1JM?>GJDEJFKGENDFGEHJGGDI?NGI?GJGGEJ>LGIIC 
HFHTJYGJXXVJEMDEHHEHJB1JMEFK>JGGFGJGGEJ1C¾JFKH 
1XC¾JJIDRJIKJFJHFFCHJDF>F>JLIFLGFKNJGGEJFK>GD?LGFIKFC 
>GFQQJFKHJ@DIEFHFKNJGDFFKFKNJFKHJN?FHFKLEJFKJGGEJJFH 
GEFLGED>JJIDRJJFGGJFCCJCEFDKED>VJFKLC?HFKNJ[==>VJWU1V 
FGoDF>RJ>G?HEKG>JFKHJFLLECEDFGEHJCEFDKED>TJXXJGF>J>EG 
F>FHEJDE>I?DLE>JFKHJGFMEJFKJGGEJ>LGIICJHFHJQID 
GEFLGED>JGIJEKNFNEJFKJDEQCELGFEEJ@DFLGFLEVJFKHFEFH?FC 
@CFKKFKNJFKHJLICCFDIDFGFIKJJFGGJGGEFDJLICCEFN?E> 
JFGGFKJFKHJFLDI>>JNDFHEJCEEEC>T 

ÉFDFFDCEJA BFDGKEDJ¿DNFKFSFGFIKJW?@@IDGIJXXJJFCCJGFEEJFJ>GDIKN 
@FDGKEDJIDNFKFSFGFIKJ>?@@IDGFKNJGGEJHECFEEDHJIQJFG> 
FLFHEMFLJ@DINDFMTJXCWCJF>JFJKFGFIKFCJKIGoQIDo@DIQFG 
IDNFKFSFGFIKJJGFLGJ@DIEFHE>J>ECELGJXEDDEJoCFKN?FNE 
LGFDGEDJ>LGIIC>JJFGGJ>?@@IDGFEEJ>EDEFLE>VJFKLC?HFKN 
L?DDFL?C?MJHEEECI@MEKGVJB1VJCEFHED>GF@JLF@FLFGH 
D?FCHFKNVJGELGKFLFCJF>>F>GFKLEVJ>GFDGo?@JFKHJIGGED 
@DINDFMMFGFLJNDFKGJI@@IDG?KFGFE>TJjGEDEJJFCCJFC>IJDE 
I@@IDG?KFGFE>J8JFMIKNJMEMDEDJ>LGIIC>JGI
@FDGFLF@FGEJFKJ>GFDEHJCEFDKFKNJEÅ@EDFEKLE>TJXXÇ> 
>G?HEKG>JJFCCJDEJGGEJ?CGFMFGEJDEKEQFLFFDFE>JIQJGGE 
G?MFKVJQFKFKLFFCJFKHJIGGEDJDE>I?DLE>JGGFGJJFCCJDE 
FEFFCFDCEJQDIMJXCWCJGIJ>?@@IDGJXXTJXCWCJHIE>JKIG 
LGFDNEJQEE>JGIJ>LGIIC>JGGFGJDELEFEEJFG>J>EDEFLE>T 

ÉFDFFDCEJ;7 W?@@IDGJ[KGFGHIJnDFEKH>JIQJXEDDEJJ=FKN?FNE 
YLFHEMHJCGFDGEDJWLGIIC>VJ¾KLTJOn¿X=YPJFJKIGoQIDo 
@DIQFGJIDNFKFSFGFIKVJJFCCJ>?@@IDGJXXJDHJ@DIEFHFKNJF 
QFLFCFGHJFKHJIGGEDJ@GFCFKGGDI@FLJ>?@@IDGJF>JHE>LDFDEH
FKJ>ELGFIKJ¾¾¾TnJnFLFCFGFE>JFKHJ¾¾¾TÂTJ-?HNEGJFKHJCF>G 
nCIJT 

i234215
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BGH>FLFC BGIKE 1F>GDFLG9CW1 /DFHE> WLGIICJFGJn?CC nFLFCFGFE> 
YHHDE>> .?MDED WEDEEHJFG CF@FLFGHJFG YNDEEMEKG 

WFGE WFGE 
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WFGEJ:
 

WFGEJk
 

PiTVJjPlTwlJ�HO�UhlJGNlJMOFGTMGJUFROHSTGUOFJROHJLUGlJKV
 

.FME UIDRJBGIKE YCGEDKFGEJBGIKE [MFFCJYHHDE>> 

-EKÆFMFKJCI>GF 

ZINEDJÂFGS 

ZINEDJÂFGS 

ZINEDJÂFGS 

WLGIICJ=EFHED 

¿@EDFGFIKFCJ=EFHED 

CIM@CFFKLE 
CIKGFLG 

CIM@CFFKGJCIKGFLG 

SKVJQwJGNlJwMNOOPJOHJTHlJGNlJwMNOOPJwUGlwJMO�POMTGlh� 

.I 

BFNEJk 

FKVJmlHlJGNlHlJTFIJHl�UwUOFwJGOJGNlJwMNOOP�wJMNTHGlHJhzHUFuJGNlJi�K��K�JwMNOOP 
IlTH�JnjPlTwlJUFMPzhlJT��HO�lhJOHJ�lFhUFuJSTGlHUTPJTFhJFOF�STGlHUTPJMNTHGlH 
Hl�UwUOFwoV 

.I 
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ZINEDJÂFGSVJ1FDELGIDJIQJ¿@EDFGFIK> 
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uHOzFhwJROHJGNlJHl�OMTGUOFJORJOzHJMNTHGlHVJWNlM�JyELJURJIOzJTuHllJTFhJGNlFJzwl 

GNlJSOzwlJOFJIOzHJjWJOHJGNlJwGIPUwGJOFJIOzHJSOaUPlJhl�UMlJGOJwUuFJIOzHJFTSloV 
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-E> 

LUuFTGzHlxJXlThJORJWNTHGlHJLMNOOP
 

LUuFTGzHlxJjHlwUhlFGJORJGNlJ_OTHhJORJcHzwGllw
 

^TGl 

:7;<9789;: 

cNTF�JIOzV
 

15234215
 



EFGHIJKJLMFN
 
LMNOPQRSMOpSqPrstrutvrwx 

yMzpPw 

OPJQERJSTUVJWXYXEJUEZTUXJ[YU\ 

ZH]^M_`JaJ_MH`bGJcULJ]HJd`eJfMFNJG]JGg`Jh]iGJH`b`FGJQ`dJS]HNJWGaG`JWbg]]fJU`j]HG 
[aH_Jk]HJGg`JbgaHG`HJibg]]fJlW``JgGGjimnnH`j]HGbaH_iPFIi`_Po]^npP 

{|}M~Op~PN�}���NP���R�pO��zP�pM~P��pP����P��OP�pOP}M�pPMP��}���P�pR�~OP|M~SP�~P����PO�P��p�Py�pMNp 
O�RpP���LP�NP��OPM�M��M��p�P��PO}pPNRM�pPR~���SpSh� 

}OORNqttSMOM���NpS�z��tR~�i��p�R}Rj��NO�Skurrrrrrslxsx 
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EFGHIJKJLHMNHOPP
 
CDEFGEHIJ789:;9;7:< 

=F>GJ?@HFGEHIJ:79;A9;7:< 

BFCEJ: 

LQRSQETTJURVWQXJYZWQUEQJSRW[T 

DEEJFGHHGIJKCJGFLHE>JDEFHEMGJFGDNFGGJKCJJKJGEEJGKHJKEJ@GDGFHJDEO?JDEHJFGDJPGFDHJGFJQECEKG>RF?GEGDJjEH 
MEFDGEDJ>MEGGH>JFKHJklCmnoRF?GEGDJjEHJMEFDGEDJ>MEGGH>JGKHpqJrMEGGH>J>EG?HHJHJ>GJBDGCDE>>JDGIFDH 
CEFDGEDJsGFH>JLpJt?C?>GJ:uJ;7:<qJvFJGEEJCGFH>JFDEJLF>EHJGKJ>G?HEKGJ@EDFGDNFKMEJHFGFJGEFGJGEE 
>MEGGHJIJHHJKGGJEFwEJFMME>>JGGJLEFGDEJt?C?>GJ:uJ;7:<JJxEqCquJGEEJklrJt>>E>>NEKGJDE>?HG>MuJEN@HFJK 
GEJ>JJKJGEEJO;7:PR;7:<JBDGCDE>>JDGIFDHJtGGFJKNEKGJGFJsGFHOJMGH?NKqJDEEJJKFGDNFGJGKJMFKJLE 
?@HFGEHJIEEKJFwFJHFLHEqJBHEF>EJMGN@HEGEJFKHJ>?LNJGJKGJHFGEDJGEFKJkGwENLEDJ:uJ;7:<q 

\]JWYWXE^_YJTU`XEaUJLEQbRQ^WaYEJSRW[T
 

cd\ef\gJLHMNHOPPJUMhiHjJWGGikFlOFGJMmJWnijOlknJSMioP
 

tMFHENJMJrG?HEKG QEF>?DEJR>EHJGG sGFHJRJQEGuJBFDGJFHHp 
BEDFGDNFKMEJsGFH owFH?FGEJBDGCDE>> QEGuJGDJkGGJQEG 

DGIFDHJtGGFJKNEKG 
GFJsGFH 

vFJkGGJQEGuJmE>MDJLE 
oFFGDG>JrMEGGHJSJHH 
DFTE 

BHFK>JGGJFHHDE>>I 
UJtJIEGHEJ>MEGGH 
FHNJKJ>GDFGJGKJGF 
GEEJkSot 
F>>E>>NEKGJIJHH 
CJwEJHEGFJHEH 
>G?HEKG 
JKFGDNFGJGKqJDEJ> 
MG?@HEHJIJGE 
@DGFE>>JGKFH 
HEwEHG@NEKGJFKH 
HFGFJHDJwEK 
JK>GD?MGJGKJIJHH 
FHHDE>>J>G?HEKG>V 
HJFFEDEKGJFGEH 
KEEH>q 
UJmEwEHG@NEKGJGFJF 
DEFHJKCJQDv 
@DGCDFNJ>GFFFEHJLp 
GEEJGIGJDEFHJKC 

123425
 



tMFHENJMJsGFHJ:
 

tMFHENJMJsGFHJ;
 

8PWJGFJEFMEJCDFHE 
HEwEH 
MGEGDGJ>MGDE>JHEwEH 
XRAJGK 
klrJF>>E>>NEKG>q 

8PWJGFJEFMEJCDFHE 
HEwEH 
MGEGDGJ@EDFGDN>JFG 
CDFHE 
HEwEHJGKJkSot 
QEFHJKC 
sDFHE>J:RP 

kGGJNEGJRJGKHp 
klrJt>>E>>NEKG> CDFHEJXJIF> 

F>>E>>EHq 

kGGJNEGJJKJCDFHEJX 
RJGKHpJCDFHEJX kSot F>>E>>EHq 

GEFMEED>JIJHHJEEH@ 
FHHDE>>JGEEJKEEH> 
GFJ>G?HEKG> 
HEGEDNJKEHJGGJLEJFG 
DJ>Tq 
UJBDGFE>>JGKFH 
HEwEHG@NEKG 
FDG?KHJEGIJGG 
FHY?>GJJK>GD?MGJGK 
LF>EHJGKJ>G?HEKG 
HFGFJIJHHJFHHDE>> 
LE>GJ@DFMGJME 
JK>GD?MGJGKqJ 
UJtDEF>JGFJKEEHJIJHH 
FH>GJLEJFHHDE>>EH 
GEDG?CEJFHHJGJGKFH 
@DGCDFN> 
xZ?KHFGJGK>u 
DEJKTCEDMFMJGG 
>?@@GDGJGEE 
HEwEHG@NEKGJGF 
>TJHH>q 
UJtJHEE@JJGEN 
FKFHp>J>JIF> 
MGKH?MGEHJFKH 
FDEF>JJKJKEEHJIEDE 
JHEKGJFJEHq 
BDGFE>>JGKFH 
HEwEHG@NEKGJFHGKC 
IJGEJFGM?>EH 
@HFKKJKCJIJHH 
FHHDE>>JLE>G 
@DFMGJMEJJK>GD?MGJGKq 
UJBDGFE>>JGKFH 
HEwEHG@NEKGJFHGKC 
IJGEJFGM?>EH 
@HFKKJKCJIJHH 
FHHDE>>JLE>G 
@DFMGJMEJJK>GD?MGJGKq 
UJDEEJrMEGGH 
FKGJMJ@FGE>JGEE>E 
FHY?>GNEKG>JIJHH 
MGKGJK?EJGG 
NFKJFE>GJJK 
JN@DGwEHJG?GMGNE> 
JKJMGNJKCJpEFD>q 

BHEF>EJ>EEJ@HFK>JFGD 
JN@DGwENEKGJJK 
CGFHJ:q 
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tMFHENJMJsGFHJX
 

tMFHENJMJsGFHJA
 

tMFHENJMJsGFHJP
 

tMFHENJMJsGFHJ<
 

tMFHENJMJsGFHJ8
 

8PWJGFJEFMEJCDFHE 
HEwEH 
MGEGDGJsDFHE>J:R 
P@EDFGDN> 
FGJCDFHEJHEwEH 
kSotJQFGE 
kSot 

8PWJGFJEFMEJCDFHE 
HEwEH 
MGEGDGJ@EDFGDN>JFG 
CDFHE 
HEwEHJGKJZG?KGF> 
FKH 
BJKKEHHJPEKMENFDT 
F>>E>>NEKG 
>p>GENuJCDFHE> 
:RP 

oFMEJCDFHEJMGEGDG 
DEH?ME> 
LpJ:9;JGEEJCF@ 
LEGIEEK 
@DEwJG?>JpEFD\> 
@EDMEKGJFG 
HEwEH>JXRAJGKJklr 
ENFN> 

ZGDJ>G?HEKG>JIEG 
DENFJKEH 
JKJ>MEGGHJFGDJGEE 
EKGJDE 
pEFDuJGEEpJIJHHJ>EGI 
GEE 
JKHJMFGEHJCDGIGEJGK 
GEE 
Z[BJLEKMENFDT 
F>>E>>NEKGJ>p>GEN 
LEGIEEK 
rE@GENLEDJFKH 
]?KEJGFJEFMEJpEFDq 
R̂:IJXJHEwEH> 
;RXIJ;JHEwEH> 

oKHJGFJ^HCKI 
o==nBt 
8PWJKGwJMEJNJH 
HEwEHJGDFH 
>TJHH>uJvKGEDNEHJFGE 
HGI 
HJ>GEKJKC 
8PWJDEMGCKJjEJFHH 
_ELDEI 
HEGGED>JJKJBDJKG 

kGGJNEGJJKJCDFHEJX 
RJGKHpJCDFHEJX kSot F>>E>>EHq 

Z[BJPEKMENFDT 
t>>E>>NEKG 
rp>GEN 

kGGJNEGuJL?GJMHG>E 
JKJCDFHE>J:R;q 

k9tJRJFJD>GJpEFDJGF k9t GE>GJKC 

BFDGJFHHpJNEG 
R̂:JNEGJCGFH> 
sDFHEJ;JMHG>EJGG Z[BJLEKMENFDT CGFH F>>E>>NEKGJ>p>GEN sDFHEJXJHJHJKGG 
NEEGJCGFH 

o==nBt sGFH>JNEG 

BHEF>EJ>EEJ@HFK>JFGD 
JN@DGwENEKGJJK 
CGFHJ:q 

BHEF>EJ>EEJ@HFK>JFGD 
JN@DGwENEKGJJK 
CGFHJ: 

BHEF>EJ>EEJ@HFK>JGG
 
FHHDE>>JJKJsGFHJ:q
 

tMFHENJMJsGFHJ`
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c]JXMJpiqOJlMHOJinijOlknJNMioPJGMJijjr 

kG 

K]JXMJpiqOJlMHOJinijOlknJNMioPJGMJijjr 

kG 

BFCEJ; 

s]JRQSWa_-WU_RaW[JSRW[T 

cd\ef\gJLHMNHOPPJUMhiHjJWGGikFlOFGJMmJRHNiFk.iGkMFioJSMioP
 

nDCJsGFHJ:
 

nDCFKJjFGJGKFHJsGFH 

rMEGGHJIJHHJEFwE 
FKK?FH 
FGGEKHFKMEJDFGEJGF 
aAWJGD 
EJCEED 

QEF>?DEJR>EHJGG sGFHJRJQEGuJBFDGJFHHp 
owFH?FGEJBDGCDE>> QEGuJGDJkGGJQEG 

tDruJnKMG?D>E kGGJNEG 

vFJkGGJQEGuJmE>MDJLE 
oFFGDG>JrMEGGHJSJHH 
DFTE 

mJHJKGGJNEEGJCGFHq 
n?D 
>GMJFHJIGDTEDJIGDT> 
GG 
JHEKGJFpJFKH 
FHHDE>>JGEG>E 
MEJHHDEKJFFHHJKC 
LEHGIJaPW 
xJKMH?HJKCJGEG>E 
FL>EKG 
H?EJGGJDEHJCJG?> 
GL>EDwFKMEMqJSE 
EFwEJF 
FGGEKHFKME 
JN@DGwENEKG 
@HFKqJSEJNEEGJIJGE 
@FDEKG> 
FKHJNFTEJEGNE 
wJ>JG> 

aPWJGFJFHHJ>G?HEKG> 
EKDGHHEHJGKJGEEJHF>G 
HFpJGF nDCJsGFHJ; tDruJnKMG?D>E DPt >MEGGHJIJHHJDEG?DKJJK 
t?C?>G 

823425
 



nDCJsGFHJX
 

nDCJsGFHJA
 

nDCJsGFHJP
 

rGDGKCJC?HG?DEJFKH 
>?@@GDGJwE 
DEHFGJGK>EJ@> 
BFDEKG>JIJHHJEN@DE>> 
>FGJ>FFMGJGKJIJGE 
G?D 
@DGCDFN 

P7WJGDJCDEFGED 
@FDEKG 
@FDGJMJ@FGJGK 

DEFMEED>JIJHH 
EN@DE>> 
>FGJ>FFMGJGKJIJGE 
>MEGGH 
HEFHED>EJ@JFKH 
@DGFE>>JGKFH 
HEwEHG@NEKG 
G@@GDG?KJGJE> 

P7WJGDJCDEFGED 
GEFMEED 
@FDGJMJ@FGJGK 

QE>@GK>JwEJ>MEGGH 
HEFHED>EJ@ 
_EFHJGFJrMEGGHJIJHH 
@DE>EKG 
@DGCDFNJDE@GDG> 
GEFGJG?GHJKE 
EKDGHHNEKGu 
FGGEKHFKMEu 
HJ>MEFDCEJ>GFG?>u 
EGMJF> 
IEHHJF>JFwFJHFLHE 
GE>GJKC 
DE>?HG>JFGJEwEDp 
PGFDHJGF 
DD?>GEE>JNEEGJKCq 
DEE 
_nrJFKHJmnJIJHH 
@DE>EKG 
FKJ?@JGGJHFGE 
FJKFKMJFH 
DE@GDGqJPGFDH 
NJK?GE>JIJHH 
DEFHEMGJGEJ>q 

QEGJCGFH> 

klCmnoJ>?DwEp 

QEGJCGFH> 

QEGJCGFH 
klCmnoJ>?DwEp 

QEGJCGFH 

PGFDHJNJK?GE> NEGJCGFH 

e]JXMJIM/JpiqOJlMHOJMHNiFk.iGkMFioJNMioPJGMJijjr 

lE> 

f23425 



cd\ef\gJLHMNHOPPJUMhiHjJWGGikFlOFGJMmJRHNiFk.iGkMFioJSMioP
 

nDCJsGFHJ<
 

nDCJsGFHJ8 

nDCJsGFHJ` 

nDCJsGFHJa 

nDCJsGFHJ:7 

nDCJsGFHJ:: 

nDCJsGFHJ:; 

nDCJsGFHJ:X 

nDCJsGFHJ:A 

nDCJsGFHJ:P 

nDCFKJjFGJGKFHJsGFH 

tGJFKpJCJwEKJGJNEu 
FGJHEF>G 
aPWJGFJFMGJwE 
NENLED>JGF 
GEEJPnDJIJJHJLE 
FMGJwE 
NENLED>JGFJF 
>?LMGNNJGGEEJGF 
GEEJLGFDH 

QEF>?DEJR>EHJGG sGFHJRJQEGuJBFDGJFHHp vFJkGGJQEGuJmE>MDJLE 
owFH?FGEJBDGCDE>> QEGuJGDJkGGJQEG oFFGDG>JrMEGGHJSJHH 

DFTE 

r?LMGNNJGGEEJHJ>G> 
FKH NEGJCGFH> 
FGGEKHFKME 

g]Jb_aWaY_W[JSRW[T
 

cd\ef\gJLHMNHOPPJUMhiHjJWGGikFlOFGJMmJbkFiFnkioJSMioP
 

ZJKFKMJFHJsGFH> QEF>?DEJR>EHJGG 
owFH?FGEJBDGCDE>> 

sGFHJRJQEGuJBFDGJFHHp 
QEGuJGDJkGGJQEG 

vFJkGGJQEGuJmE>MDJLE 
oFFGDG>JrMEGGHJSJHH 
DFTE 

oKDGHHNEKGJJ>JIJGEJK 
:PWJGF 
F?HHJEKDGHHNEKGJF> 
HEFJKEHJJK 
MEFDGEDq 

tDr9nKCG?D>E 
QEGJCGFHJFGDJNG>G 
GFJGEE 
pEFDq 

CGKGJK?EHJ@FDEKG 
G?GDEFMEu 
DEMD?JGJKCuJNFJHED> 
JKJN?HGJ@HE 
HFKC?FCE>u 
NEEGJKC>JFGJCPn\> 
EGM 

ZJKFKMJFHJsGFHJ:
 

__=tJEF>
 

g23425
 



ZJKFKMJFHJsGFHJ;
 

?KHEDCGKEJFK 
JKHE@EKHEKG 
FJKFKMJFHJF?HJG 
DE>?HGJKCJJK 
?KO?FHJFJEH 
G@JKJGKJFKHJKG 
NFYGD 
FJKHJKC> 

vKHE@EKHEKG NEGJCGFH FJKFKMJFHJF?HJG 

__=tJG@EDFGE>JF 

ZJKFKMJFHJsGFHJX 
LFHFKMEH 
L?HCEGJFKH 
NFJKGFJK>JF 

BDGFJG9HG>> 
>GFGENEKG> NEGJCGFH 

>GFLHEJMF>EJFHGI 

ZJKFKMJFHJsGFHJA 

ZJKFKMJFHJsGFHJP 

523425
 



EFGHIJKJELMNFOPGQHNRJMNHJSTPUO
 
CDEFGEHIJ7897:9;7<= 

>F?GJ@AHFGEHIJ789;89;7<= 

BFCEJ< 

FGHIHJGIKLMHNOPQIRGOHL 
STGULGHNOPQIRGOHLGULPVWXGPVYLONLZ[[LJTIPRVPLUJTOOKU\L]PO^GYVLRTVLNOKKO_GH`LQVIUXPVULONLNGUJIK 
aVPNOPQIHJVLONLRTVLJTIPRVPLUJTOOKLGHLZaaVHYGbLcLdSORIKLebaVHYGRXPVULIHYLZYQGHGURPIRG^V 

ebaVHYGRXPVUL]VPLfTGKYgh 
J 

VWJXYGZUJELMNFOPGQHNRJ[NHJSTPUO 

DEJFFGF@GFGEJ\XYGZUJELMNFOPGQHNRJMNHJSTPUO]JGFHEJGEGFGJEIAEJHKG@DE?JLMDENJGOEJ@JF@HKGEHJ;7<PQ<= 
RFOEH@GEJEMJS@JFGKEJFGJTIAEJ?E?UJFJHJHKVKHEJWXJGOEJXEFDJEJHJSDTJ?G@HEJGJEJDEGGNEJGYJLZJGECED?JFJGXY 
GEJHEGGFDJ?KCJ?JEDJFENNF?UY 

NOPQRSSTUQSVWXOYZ[PVOWSOWSPUQS\]UQ^_`QSOXSa_W]PVOW[`SbcdQWeQeSOWSd[fQeSghigjSOXSPUQ 
k_^VPSl_V^QS][WSUQ`dSe]UOO`eS`O][PQSPUQS[ZO_WPeSPOS_eQSVWSPUQSPmOSdQYSd_dV`S][`]_`[PVOWeR 
UPPdRnnmmmodhpoWqeQ^ofOrnde]nk_^VPl_V^QoUPZ` 
J 

>KJEJ<IJDEGFGJTIAEJHKG@DE? =778;<8 

>KJEJ;IJHEFDJTJHJSDTJ?G@HEJGJEJDEGGNEJG ;I7 

>KJEJJIJKKVKHEJ>KJEJ<JWXJ>KJEJ; ;78<P 

^WJ_O`PFPRGHZGPaNJELMNFOPGQHNRJMNHJSTPUO 

DEJFFGF@GFGEJ\_O`PFPRGHZGPaNJELMNFOPGQHNRJMNHJSTPUObJDEJFFGF@GFGEJLMHNKJK?GDFGKVEJTIAEJHKG@DE? 
AEDJCOKGHNJMKD?GJabbJGECEGOEDJGOEJMEGGEOKJCI 

<YJDFHEJGOEJDEGEVFJGJAEDGKEJJMDENJGOEJPAED?EJJEGJ?EDVKFE?JFE?GQJDEOJFJHJGOEJPNFJFCENEJGJFJH 
CEJEDFGQJFEG@NJJLMDENJGOEJ@JF@HKGEHJ;7<PQ<=JRFOEH@GEJEMJS@JFGKEJFGJTIAEJ?E?U 

;YJMJXJFEJGDFFGEHJFHNKJK?GDFGKVE9NFJFCENEJGJMEEJAFKHJGEJEGOEDJEDCFJKRFGKEJ?JEDJFEDAEDFGKEJ? 

JYJDFHEJGOEJGEGFGJMDENJFWEVEJFJHJHKVKHEJKGJWXJGOEJXEFDQEJHJSDTJEJDEGGNEJGYJJDOEJDEGEVFJGJAEDGKEJJGOFG 
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N@?GJWEJKJFG@HEHJKJJGOK?JFFGF@GFGKEJJK?JHEMKJEHJF?JMEGGEO?I 

MHNKJK?GDFGKVEJTIAEJHKG@DE?IJJMHNKJK?GDFGKEJJFJHJNFJFCENEJGJEMJGOEJFOFDGEDJ?FOEEGJKJFG@HE?JGOE 
FFGKVKGKE?JFJHJAED?EJJEGJEMJGOEJEMMKFE?JEMJGOEJFOKEMJ?FOEEGJEMMKFEDSJGOEJMKJFJFEJEDJW@?KJE??JEMMKFE?S 
?FOEEGJEAEDFGKEJ?JAED?EJJEGSJHFGFJNFJFCENEJGJFJHJDEAEDGKJCSJO@NFJJDE?E@DFE?SJGEFOJEGECXSJEGFYJZG 
FG?EJKJFG@HE?JGOE?EJFHNKJK?GDFGKVEJFJHJNFJFCENEJGJ?EDVKFE?JADEVKHEHJWXJEGOEDJEDCFJKRFGKEJ?JED 
FEDAEDFGKEJ?JEJJWEOFGMJEMJGOEJFOFDGEDJ?FOEEGJMEDJOOKFOJGOEJFOFDGEDJ?FOEEGJAFX?JFJMEEJEDJEGOED 
FENAEJ?FGKEJYJJKEJJEGJKJFG@HEJGOEJSDTJEMJAED?EJJEGJOOE?EJDEGEJK?JGEJHKDEFGGXJ?@AAEDGJGOE 
KJ?GD@FGKEJFGJADECDFNYJJ 

NOPQeRSS 
TUQSVWXOYZ[PVOWSOWSPUQS\]UQ^_`QSOXSa_W]PVOW[`SbcdQWeQeSOWSd[fQeSghigjSOXSPUQSk_^VP 
l_V^QS][WSUQ`dSe]UOO`eS`O][PQSPUQS[ZO_WPeSPOS_eQSVWSPUQSPmOSdQYSd_dV`S][`]_`[PVOWeR 
UPPdRnnmmmodhpoWqeQ^ofOrnde]nk_^VPl_V^QoUPZ`oS 
E`MUYINNJcNFNdPGJeYRGRJYHJNLMNFOPGQHNRJRTYQUOJFYGJcNJHNMYHGNOJPFJGTNJZcYaN 
eZUeQUZGPYFRW 

>KJEJ<IJTEGEVFJGJBED?EJJEGJREDVKFE?JCE?GJLTEOU 

>KJEJ;IJUFJFCENEJGJFJHJVEJEDFGJCE?GJLCEG@NJU 

>KJEJJIJR@NJEMJ>KJEJ<JFJHJ>KJEJ; 

>KJEJPIJKKVKHEJ>KJEJJJWXJGOEJHEFDJTJHJSDTJ?G@HEJG 
EJDEGGNEJG 

;=J8<I 

;8IWW= 

PWJ<=P 

<:8J 

TU[WsSqO_o
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FILL IN GRAY CELLS 

Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 

2016 2015 

ASSETS 
CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $118,475 $212,165 
Grants and contracts receivable 78,265 47,693 
Accounts receivables 209,304 16,168 
Inventory - -
Prepaid Expenses 41,816 183,497 
Contributions and other receivables - -

Other 622 -
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS $448,482 $459,523 

OTHER ASSETS 
Investments $- $-
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net 230,723 186,761 

Restricted Cash 75,104 50,037 
OTHER ASSETS $305,827 $236,798 

TOTAL ASSETS $754,309 $696,321 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $152,848 $154,822 
Accrued payroll and benefits 358,351 293,741 
Refundable Advances - 46,163 
Dreferred Revenue - -
Current maturities of long-term debt - -
Short Term Debt - Bonds, Notes Payable - -

Other - -
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES $511,199 $494,726 

LONG-TERM DEBT, net current maturities $- $-

TOTAL LIABILITIES $511,199 $494,726 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted $243,110 $201,595 

Temporarily restricted - -
TOTAL NET ASSETS $243,110 $201,595 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $754,309 $696,321 

Check - -



    

    
  

     

    

    
              
              
            
             
             
            
          

             
             

  
   

           
           

           
             
   

           

          
            

             

  
      
      
      

      
      
       

         
            

            

              

           

             

  
 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 

State & Local Operating Revenue $5,386,320 $- $5,386,320
�
Federal - Title and IDEA 94,589 - 94,589
�
Federal - Other 39,986 - 39,986
�
State and City Grants - - -
Contributions and private grants 359,000 - 359,000
�
After school revenue - - -
Other - - -

Food Service/Child Nutrition Program 135,189 - 135,189
�
TOTAL REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT $6,015,084 $- $6,015,084 

EXPENSES 
Program Services 

Regular Education $4,504,114 $-
919,978 -

- -

$4,504,114
�
Special Education
� 919,978
�

Other Programs
� -
Total Program Services $5,424,092 $- $5,424,092 $4,062,657 

Supporting Services 
Management and general 

Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES 

$3,562,356 
500,301 

-

$583,124 $-

- -

$583,124
�

Fundraising
� -
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $6,007,216 $- $6,007,216 $4,554,035 

$491,378 

-

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM SCHOOL OPERATIONS $7,868 $- $7,868 $(23,995) 

Contributions 

FILL IN GRAY CELLS 

2016 2015 

Temporarily 
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 

REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 
$3,629,923 

67,708 
154,468 

-
400,000 

-
147,242 

130,699 
$4,530,040 

Foundations 0 $- $- 0 
Individuals 0 - - 0 
Corporations 0 - - 0 

Fundraising 9782 - 9,782 14240 
Interest income 67 - 67 35 
Miscellaneous income 23796 - 23,796 38887 

Net assets released from restriction 0 - - 0 
TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE $33,645 $- $33,645 $53,162
�

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS $41,513 $- $41,513 $29,167
�

NET ASSETS BEGINNING OF YEAR $201,595 $- $201,595 

PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS - - -

$172,428 

-

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $243,108 $- $243,108 $201,595 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

Board of Trustees 
Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Harlem Hebrew Language 
Academy Charter School, which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 
2016 and 2015, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows 
for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

Auditors and Consultants 655 Third Avenue, 12th Floor, New York, NY 10017 
Serving the HealthCare & Not for Profit Sectors (212) 867-4000/ Fax (212)867-9810 / www.loebandtroper.com 

http:www.loebandtroper.com


 

 
       

 

 

   
        

      
   

  

      
     

 
    

     
   

     
     

   
 

 
  

2.
 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School as of June 30, 
2016 and 2015, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
October 14, 2016 on our consideration of Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter 
School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Harlem 
Hebrew Language Academy Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

October 14, 2016 



 

EXHIBIT A
 

HARLEM HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL
 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
 

JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
 

2016 2015 

ASSETS 

Current assets 
Cash 
Grants and contracts receivable 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 

$ 118,475 
287,278 

42,438 

$ 212,165 
63,861 

183,497 

Total current assets 448,191 459,523 

Noncurrent assets 
Cash - reserves (Note 2) 
Fixed assets - net (Note 3) 

75,104 
490,588 

50,037 
186,761 

Total assets $ 1,013,883 $ 696,321 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Current liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued salaries and related liabilities 
Refundable advances (Note 2) 

$ 183,789 
358,350 

$ 154,822 
293,741 

46,163 

Total liabilities 542,139 494,726 

Net assets - unrestricted (Exhibit B) 471,744 201,595 

Total liabilities and net assets $ 1,013,883 $ 696,321 

See independent auditor's report.
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
 



EXHIBIT B
 

HARLEM HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL
 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
 

2016 2015 

Operating revenues 
State and local per-pupil operating revenues 
Government grants and contracts 
Foundations and corporate contributions 
In-kind contributions (Note 4) 
Other revenues 

$ 5,100,388 
555,393 
360,513 
201,885 

32,132 

$ 3,610,762 
372,035 
402,357 
147,242 

50,806 

Total operating revenues 6,250,311 4,583,202 

Operating expenses 
Program services 

General education 
Special education 

4,393,169 
1,038,383 

3,562,356 
500,301 

Total program services 5,431,552 4,062,657 

Supporting services 
Management and general 548,610 491,378 

Total operating expenses (Exhibit C) 5,980,162 4,554,035 

Change in unrestricted net assets (Exhibit D) 270,149 29,167 

Net assets - unrestricted - beginning of year 201,595 172,428 

Net assets - unrestricted - end of year (Exhibit A) $ 471,744 $ 201,595 

See independent auditor's report.
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
 



   

 

    

 

 
 

   

   
 
  

   
  
  
  
  

 
  

 
    

 

HARLEM HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL EXHIBIT C 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015 

No. of 
Positions 

General 
Education 

Program 
Services 

2016 

Special 
Education 

Supporting 
Services 

Management 
and General Total 

Administrative staff personnel 
Instructional personnel 
Non-instructional personnel 

5 
39 
4 

$ 108,875 
1,991,826 

78,172 

$ 16,750 
459,237 

23,123 

$ 253,589 $ 379,214 
2,451,063 

101,295 

Total salaries and staff 48 2,178,873 499,110 253,589 2,931,572 

Payroll taxes and employee benefits 
Occupancy (Note 7) 
Contracted services 
Recruitment 
Supplies and equipment 
Student meal program 
Student field trips 
Repairs and maintenance 
Printing and postage 
Professional fees 
Dues and subscription 
Insurance 
Telephone and internet 
In-kind rent and services (Note 4) 
Staff travel 
Depreciation 

512,804 
748,244 
169,034 

40,229 
173,139 
147,025 

1,701 
84,820 

3,298 
71,379 

830 
21,677 
19,490 

150,050 

70,576 

117,467 
171,398 

47,194 
11,767 
50,763 
43,489 

503 
19,429 

755 
16,350 

190 
4,965 
4,465 

34,371 

16,167 

59,683 
87,085 

4,891 
231 

19,069 

9,872 
384 

83,074 
97 

2,523 
2,268 

17,464 
166 

8,214 

689,954 
1,006,727 

221,119 
52,227 

242,971 
190,514 

2,204 
114,121 

4,437 
170,803 

1,117 
29,165 
26,223 

201,885 
166 

94,957 

Total expenses $ 4,393,169 $ 1,038,383 $ 548,610 $ 5,980,162 

-continued-



   

 

    

 

 
 

   

   
 
  

   
  
  
  
  

 
  

 
    

 

  

     

HARLEM HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

EXHIBIT C 
-2-

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015 

No. of 
Positions 

General 
Education 

Program 
Services 

2015 

Special 
Education 

Supporting 
Services 

Management 
and General Total 

Administrative staff personnel 
Instructional personnel 
Non-instructional personnel 

4 
27 
4 

$ 102,375 
1,542,655 

75,504 

$ 15,750 
181,461 

17,586 

$ 229,299 $ 347,424 
1,724,116 

93,090 

Total salaries and staff 35 1,720,534 214,797 229,299 2,164,630 

Payroll taxes and employee benefits 
Occupancy (Note 7) 
Contracted services 
Recruitment 
Supplies and equipment 
Student meal program 
Student field trips 
Repairs and maintenance 
Printing and postage 
Professional fees 
Dues and subscription 
Insurance 
Telephone and internet 
In-kind rent and services (Note 4) 
Staff travel 
Depreciation 

409,789 
623,484 
143,679 

55,300 
160,325 
121,702 

9,091 
83,628 

1,463 
28,906 

480 
20,070 
17,255 

118,520 

48,130 

51,159 
77,838 
29,431 
12,355 
36,475 
28,347 

2,118 
10,440 

183 
3,609 

60 
2,506 
2,155 

22,819 

6,009 

54,613 
83,091 

6,262 
647 

17,675 

11,145 
195 

69,229 
64 

2,675 
2,300 
5,903 
1,866 
6,414 

515,561 
784,413 
179,372 

68,302 
214,475 
150,049 

11,209 
105,213 

1,841 
101,744 

604 
25,251 
21,710 

147,242 
1,866 

60,553 

Total expenses $ 3,562,356 $ 500,301 $ 491,378 $ 4,554,035 

See independent auditor's report.
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
 



EXHIBIT D
 

HARLEM HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL
 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
 

2016 2015 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Change in net assets (Exhibit B) 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to 

net cash provided by operating activities 
Depreciation 
Decrease (increase) in assets 

Grants and contracts receivable 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 

Increase in liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued salaries and related liabilities 
Refundable advances 

$ 270,149 

94,957 

(223,417) 
141,059 

28,967 
64,609 

(46,163) 

$ 29,167 

60,553 

9,513 
(143,341) 

77,081 
98,358 
46,163 

Net cash provided by operating activities 330,161 177,494 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Fixed asset acquisitions 
Increase in cash reserves 

(398,784) 
(25,067) 

(82,117) 
(25,037) 

Net cash used by investing activities (423,851) (107,154) 

Net change in cash (93,690) 70,340 

Cash - beginning of year 212,165 141,825 

Cash - end of year $ 118,475 $ 212,165 

See independent auditor's report.
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
 



 
  

 
  

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

    

       
       

       
          

         
      

    
         

            
   

          
 

      

      

         
          

      
      

   

       
 

       
 

           
            

 

          
      

   

    

  

HARLEM HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
 

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF ORGANIZATION
 

Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School (HHLA) is an educational corporation that 
operates as a charter school in the Borough of Manhattan, New York. On July 12, 2012, the Board 
of Regents and the Board of Trustees of the University of the State of New York, on behalf of the 
State Education Department, granted HHLA a charter valid for a term of 5 years and renewable 
upon expiration. HHLA was organized to provide its students with the strong academic and 
personal foundation necessary to be ethical and informed global citizens and to develop a strong 
sense of social and civic responsibility. This is accomplished through an academically rigorous K-
5 curriculum which includes integration of service learning and community service across the 
curriculum. In fiscal years 2016 and 2015, HHLA operated classes for 290 students in grades K-3 
and 212 students in grades K-2, respectively. HHLA opened the school on August 26, 2013. 

HHLA is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. 
HHLA is supported primarily by state and local per-pupil operating revenues. 

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of accounting - The financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. 

Use of estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues 
and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Cash - reserves - Deposits represent funds held aside for contingency purposes as required by the 
New York City Department of Education. 

Allowance for doubtful accounts - Bad debt expense is charged if a receivable is determined to 
be uncollectible based on periodic review by management.  Factors used to determine whether an 
allowance should be recorded include the age of the receivable and a review of payments 
subsequent to year end. Management has determined that no allowance is necessary as of June 30, 
2016. 

Fixed assets - Fixed assets are recorded at cost. Items with a cost of $1,000 or more with an 
estimated useful life of greater than one year are capitalized. Depreciation and amortization are 
provided on the straight-line basis over the estimated following useful lives of assets: 

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 - 7 years 

-continued-



 
  

 
  

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

   

      
              

 

        
 

            
            

      
 

       
    

         
       

  

      
       

       
         

       
       

         
       

     
 

     

         
 

        
       

     
    

 

  

2. 
HARLEM HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
 

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Accrued salaries and related liabilities - Accrued salaries and related liabilities consist of payroll 
and merit pay earned by staff during the school year but paid out over the summer months and/or 
following fiscal year. 

Refundable advances - Advances represent funds received from government agencies for the 
following year’s programs. 

State and local per-pupil revenues - Revenues from the state and local governments in accordance 
with HHLA’s charter status is based on the number of students enrolled and are recorded when 
services are performed in accordance with the charter agreement. These funds are recorded by 
HHLA when services are rendered. 

Government grants and contract revenues and receivables - Revenues from government grants 
and contracts to which HHLA is entitled are recognized primarily on student enrollment. Some 
grants are provided for specific educational endeavors which are not based on student enrollment 
and are recorded when related expenditures are incurred by HHLA. Receivables are recorded when 
the revenue is earned. 

Contributions - Unconditional contributions, including promises to give cash and other assets, are 
reported at fair value at the date the contribution is received. All contributions are considered to 
be available for unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by the donors. The gifts are reported 
as temporarily or permanently restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that 
limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated 
time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are 
reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets 
released from restrictions. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met within the 
same year as received are reported as unrestricted contributions in the accompanying financial 
statements. 

In-kind contributions - In-kind contributions are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. 

Unrestricted net assets - Unrestricted net assets include funds having no restrictions as to use or 
purpose imposed by donors. 

Functional allocation of expenses - The costs of providing the programs and other activities of 
HHLA have been summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities, which include 
all expenses incurred for the year. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the 
programs and supporting services benefited. Such allocations are determined by management in 
accordance with grant provisions and/or other equitable bases.  

-continued-



 
  

 
  

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

     

        
        

    

       
       

     

       
   

  

   
   

       
       

   
       

       
   
       

     

        
      

       
       

      
  

     

          
         

           
   

3. 
HARLEM HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
 

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Fundraising - Fundraising services are performed by volunteers (primarily the Board of Trustees). 
No amounts are reflected in the accompanying financial statements for such services as they do 
not meet the criteria for recognition as contributions. 

Uncertainty in income taxes - HHLA has determined that there are no material uncertain tax 
positions that require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements. Periods ending June 30, 
2013 and subsequent remain subject to examination by applicable taxing authorities. 

Subsequent events - Subsequent events have been evaluated through October 14, 2016, which is 
the date the financial statements were available to be issued. 

NOTE 3 - FIXED ASSETS 

2016 2015 

Furniture, fixtures and equipment $ 430,046 $ 291,127 
Construction in progress 259,865 

689,911 291,127 
Accumulated depreciation (199,323) (104,366) 

$ 490,588 $ 186,761 

NOTE 4 - IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS 

In-kind contributions were from two not-for-profit organizations, Friends of Hebrew Language 
Academy Charter Schools, Inc. and Hebrew Public. Friends of Hebrew Language Academy 
Charter School’s contribution consisted of occupancy costs of $56,775 and $55,708 in 2016 and 
2015, respectively. In addition, certain personnel services are paid for directly by Hebrew Public 
in the amount of $145,130 and $91,534 in 2016 and 2015, respectively. Total in-kind contributions 
amounted to $201,885 and $147,242 in 2016 and 2015, respectively. 

NOTE 5 - PENSION PLAN 

HHLA has a defined contribution retirement plan which covers substantially all full-time 
employees. HHLA contributed a dollar-to-dollar match up to 3% of the employees’ compensation. 
Pension expense under this plan was $58,572 and $52,238 for the employer match and $1,875 and 
$2,935 for administrative fees in 2016 and 2015, respectively. 

-continued-



 
  

 
  

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

     

       
         

         
   

  

          
  

          
 

  

         
                 
     

 

    
    
    
    

    
  
    

   

     
      

    
 

4. 
HARLEM HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015 

NOTE 6 - CONTINGENCIES AND CONCENTRATIONS 

Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by the funding sources. Such audits might 
result in disallowances of costs submitted for reimbursement. Management is of the opinion that 
such cost disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the accompanying financial 
statements. Accordingly, no amounts have been provided in the accompanying financial 
statements for such potential claims. 

Financial instruments that potentially subject HHLA to a concentration of credit risk are cash 
accounts with financial institutions in excess of FDIC insurance limits.  

A significant portion of HHLA’s operating revenue is paid by the New York City Department of 
Education. 

NOTE 7 - LEASE COMMITMENT 

HHLA entered into a noncancelable lease as of July 1, 2015 which will expire on June 30, 2033. 
Rent for each term will be determined by mutual agreement each year. For the years ended June 30, 
2016 and 2015, rent expense amounted to $950,000 and $700,000, respectively. Future minimum 
payments are as follows: 

2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
Thereafter 

$ 1,160,000 
1,160,000 
1,160,000 
1,160,000 

15,080,000 

$ 19,720,000 

NOTE 8 - CHARTER MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATION 

On January 6, 2016, HHLA entered into an educational services agreement with a charter 
management organization (“CMO”) to provide expertise necessary to effectively provide essential 
programming and services to the charter school. The agreement continues through June 30, 2018. 
The expense for 2016 amounted to $60,000. 
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

and on Compliance and Other Matters Based
 

on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
 
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

Board of Trustees 
Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School, which comprise the 
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, and the related statements of 
activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 14, 2016. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Harlem 
Hebrew Language Academy Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting 
(internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter 
School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Auditors and Consultants 655 Third Avenue, 12th Floor, New York, NY 10017 
Serving the HealthCare & Not for Profit Sectors (212) 867-4000/ Fax (212)867-9810 / www.loebandtroper.com 

http:www.loebandtroper.com


 

 

 

 
       

   
   

       
  

 

     
       

   
     

    
    

       
 

 

          
     

  
   

    
  

 
 
 

  

2. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during 
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Harlem Hebrew Language Academy 
Charter School’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

October 14, 2016 
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HARLEM HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY
 
CHARTER SCHOOL
 
ESCROW ACCOUNT
 
147 S NICHOLAS AVENUE
 
NEW YORK NY 10026
 

COMMERCIAL SAVINGS 
Statement of Account 
Account Number 654-67236-9 

, ,April 30 2016 - June 30 2016 
Page 1 of 1 

Questions? 
Call 1-877-472-2249 or write: 
HSBC 
P.O. Box 9 
Buffalo, New York 14240 

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITY FOR THE PERIOD 04/30/16 TO 06/30/16 DATE OF LAST STATEMENT WAS 04/29/16 

04/29/16 

06/30/16 

YOUR BALANCE ON WAS 
THERE WERE WITHDRAWALS AND SUBTRACTIONS 
THERE WERE DEPOSITS AND OTHER ADDITIONS 
INTEREST POSTED THIS PERIOD 
YOUR BALANCE ON 

75,078.76 
.00 
.00 

25.46 
75,104.22 

INTEREST PAID THIS YEAR 42.06 

TRANSACTION DETAIL 

WITHDRAWALS DEPOSITS 
DATE AND OTHER AND OTHER 
POSTED DESCRIPTION OF TRANSACTIONS SUBTRACTIONS ADDITIONS BALANCE 

06/30/16 

06/30/16 

INTEREST PAID FROM 04/01/16 THROUGH 06/30/16 INCLUSIVE 
AVERAGE DAILY LEDGER BALANCE $74,254.58 

$17.54 INTEREST EARNED FROM 04/30/16 
THROUGH 06/30/16 INCLUSIVE 
INTEREST IS NOT AVAILABLE UNTIL CREDITED TO ACCOUNT 
AVERAGE DAILY LEDGER BALANCE $75,078.76 
ANNUAL PERCENTAGE YIELD EARNED 00.14 % 

25.46 

75,104.22 

Please examine your statement at once. For your convenience, If you change your address, please notify your branch office of your 
instructions for balancing your account are included. newnew address.address. All deposited items are credited subject to final payment. 



How to balance your Account
 
AREA "A" AMOUNT 

USE THESE STEPS TO BRING YOUR REGISTER BALANCE INTO AGREEMENT 
WITH THIS STATEMENT. 

1. Adjust your register balance for interest (if any) not previously recorded. 

2. Compare deposits, interest and other additions shown on this statement with 
your records. 

a) Adjust your register balance for any automatic transfers or other additions not 
previously recorded. 

b) Record recent deposits made but not showing on this statement in area "A." 

3. Compare checks shown on this statement with your records and record in area 
"B" all checks/withdrawals which have been written or made but have not been 
charged to your acount. 

4. Compare other subtractions shown on this statement with your records. 

a) List those which have been made but are not shown on this statement in area 
"B." 

b) Adjust your register balance for any other subtractions not previously recorded. 

5. Compare fees charged to your account with your records and adjust your 
register balance for any not previously recorded. 

6. Enter new balance shown on statement. 

7. Enter total area "A." 

8. Add lines 6 and 7. 

9. Enter total from area "B." 

10. Subtract line 9 from line 8. This should be your present 
register balance. If not, the most common mistakes are 
either an error in arithmetic or a service charge not 
listed in your register. If you need further assistance, 
please bring this statement to your banking office. 

TOTAL 

AREA "B" AMOUNT 

TOTAL 

Add the Check Charges for 
the outstanding checks listed 
above, if applicable. 

GRAND TOTAL 

For Consumer Accounts Only: 
IN CASE OF ERRORS OR QUESTIONS ABOUT YOUR ELECTRONIC TRANSFERS
 
Electronic transfers (called transfers below) mean a) deposits, withdrawals, or payments made at an ATM or store terminal, b) bill payer transfers,
 
c) all other electronic transfers (e.g., payroll deposits, Social Security deposits, insurance payments, etc.).
 

If you think your statement or receipt is wrong, or if you need more information about a transfer on the statement or receipt, TELEPHONE US OR
 
WRITE TO US AS SOON AS YOU CAN -- USE THE TELEPHONE NUMBER OR ADDRESS ON THE FRONT OF THIS STATEMENT.
 

We must hear from you no later than 60 days after we sent you the FIRST statement on which the error or problem appeared.
 

(1) Tell us your name and account number (if any). 

(2) Describe the error or the transfer you are unsure about, and explain as clearly as you can why you believe there is an error or why you 
need more information. 

(3) Tell us the dollar amount of the suspected error. 

We will investigate your complaint and will correct any error promptly. If we take more than 10 business days to do this, we will recredit your 
account for the amount you think is in error, so that you will have the use of the money during the time it takes to complete our investigation. 

In case of any other error, like a forged or altered check or an error in non-electronic deposit, you must report the error within 14 days of the 
mailing or delivery of this statement or the account will be considered correct. 

HSBC Bank USA, National Association Member FDIC 
' 2008 HSBC Bank USA, National Association 



     

  
  

  

  

  

  
        

 

    
     

              
  

                 
            

           

            
             

            
           

New York State Education Department
�
Request for Proposals to Establish Charter Schools Authorized by the Board 

of Regents 

2015-16 Budget & Cash Flow Template 

General Instructions and Notes for New Application Budgets and Cash Flows Templates 

1 
2 

3 

4 

5 

Complete ALL SIX columns in BLUE 
Enter information into the GRAY cells 

Cells containing RED triangles in the upper right corner in columns B through G contain guidance on 
that particular item 

Funding by School District information for all NYS School district is located on the State Aid website 
at https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/. Refer to this website for per-pupil tuition funding for all school 
districts. Rows may be inserted in the worksheet to accomodate additional districts if necessary. 

The Assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is 
self-explanatory. Where applicable, please reference the page number or section in the application 
narrative that indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enrollment would reference 
the applicable page number in Section I, C of the application narrative. 



 n
breakout.
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PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2016-2017  Assumptions 

July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10.

 OTHER  FUNDRAISING TOTAL

 Total Revenue 5,869,308 1,118,153 - - 381,222 7,368,683 

 Total Expenses  5,221,909 1,581,357 - - 551,830 7,355,096 
 Net Income 647,399 (463,204)  - - (170,608)  13,587 

 Actual Student Enrollment 378 73 378 

 Total Paid Student Enrollment - - -

 SUPPORT SERVICES 

 FUNDRA SING  TOTAL 

REVENUE 

REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 

Per Pupil Revenue 

District of Location $14,027.00  4,927,058 - - - 375,148 5,302,206 

School District 2 (Enter Name)  - - - - - -

School District 3 (Enter Name)  - - - - - -

School District 4 (Enter Name)  - - - - - -

School District 5 (Enter Name)  - - - - - -

375,148 5,302,206 

Special Education Revenue  - 856,198 - - - 856,198 

Grants 

Stimulus  - - - - - -

Other  - - - - - -

Other State Revenue  601,982 144,081 - - - 746,063 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES  5,529,040 1,000,279 375,148 6,904,467 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING 

IDEA Special Needs  - 32,111 - - - 32,111 

Title I  66,847 15,999 - - - 82,846 

Title Funding - Other  5,698 1,364 - - - 7,062 

School Food Service (Free Lunch)  141,937 33,972 - - - 175,909 

Grants 

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation  - - - - - -

Other  - - - - - -

Other Federal Revenue  - - - - - -

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES  214,482 83,446 297,928 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE 

Contributions and Donations, Fundraising  42,764 13,270 - - 4,266 60,300 

Erate Reimbursement  18,080 5,611 - - 1,804 25,495 

Interest Income, Earnings on Investments, 35 11 - - 4 50 

NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.)  - - - - - -

Food Service (Income from meals)  40,666 9,734 - - - 50,400 

Text Book  24,241 5,802 - - - 30,043 

Other Local Revenue  - - - - - -

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES  125,786 34,428 6,074 166,288 

TOTAL REVENUE 5,869,308 1,118,153 381,222 7,368,683 

List exact titles and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent) 

EXPENSES 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS

Executive Management  20,000 - - 50,000 200,000 Head of School 
Instructional Management  - - - - -

Deans, Directors & Coordinators  57,937 - - - 300,000 Directors of Curriculum. Hebrew Curriculum, Student Support 
CFO / Director of Finance  - - - - -

Operation / Business Manager  - - - 80,000 80,000 Director of Ops 
Administrative Staff  22,294 - - 131,259 246,699 Office Administrators, Bookkeeper, Ops Associates 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF  100,231 261,259 826,699 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 

Teachers - Regular  168,899 - - - 1,722,851 

Teachers - SPED  340,000 - - - 340,000 

Substitute Teachers  - - - - -

Teaching Assistants  21,243 - - - 110,000 General & Hebrew Floater 
Specialty Teachers  81,188 - - - 420,398 Music, Gym, Reading, ELL 
Aides  - - - - -

Therapists & Counselors  60,000 - - - 60,000 Social Worker 
Other - Incentives 41,057 - - - 212,595 Incentives & Training stipends 

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL  712,387 2,865,844 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 

Nurse  - - - - -

Librarian  - - - - -

Custodian  - - - - - - -

Security  - -

Other  - - - - - - -

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS  55 2,618,666 812,618 261,259 3,692,543 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 

Payroll Taxes  221,642 68,779 - - 22,113 312,534 

Fringe / Employee Benefits  341,098 105,849 - - 34,030 480,977 

Retirement / Pension  54,992 17,065 - - 5,486 77,543 

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS  617,732 191,693 61,629 871,054 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS  3,236,398 1,004,311 322,888 4,563,597 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

Accounting / Audit - - - - 60,806 60,806 

Legal  - - - - 25,000 25,000 

Management Company Fee  179,296 55,639 - - 17,888 252,822 

Nurse Services  - - - - - -

Food Service / School Lunch  - - - - - -

Payroll Services  4,387 1,361 - - 438 6,186 

Special Ed Services  - - - - - -

Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)  - - - - - -

Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting  134,470 37,851 - - 7,966 180,287 

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES  318,152 94,851 112,098 525,101 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS 

Board Expenses  - - - - - -

Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials  109,535 26,217 - - - 135,752 

Special Ed Supplies & Materials  - - - - - -

Textbooks / Workbooks  22,335 5,346 - - - 27,681 

Supplies & Materials other  66,164 15,836 - - - 82,000 

Equipment / Furniture  6,383 1,981 - - 637 9,001 

Telephone 6,709 2,082 - - 669 9,460 

Technology  14,442 4,060 - - 848 19,350 

Student Testing & Assessment  12,898 3,087 - - - 15,985 

Field Trips  2,017 483 - - - 2,500 

Transportation (student)  3,550 850 - - - 4,400 

Student Services - other  2,017 483 - - - 2,500 

Office Expense  20,212 6,272 - - 2,016 28,500 

Staff Development  1,950 605 - - 195 2,750 

Staff Recruitment  1,773 550 - - 177 2,500 

Student Recruitment / Marketing  40,344 9,656 - - - 50,000 

School Meals / Lunch  184,051 44,052 - - - 228,103 

Travel (Staff)  709 220 - - 71 1,000 

Fundraising  - - - - - -

Other - School Operations  709 220 - - 71 1,000 

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS  495,798 122,000 4,684 622,482 

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 

Insurance  23,811 7,389 - - 2,376 33,576 

Janitorial  - - - - - -

Building and Land Rent / Lease  835,056 259,132 - - 83,312 1,177,500 

Repairs & Maintenance 131,903 40,932 - - 13,160 185,995 

Equipment / Furniture  -

Security  52,228 12,847 - - 486 65,561 

Utilities  39,714 12,324 - - 3,962 56,000 

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE  1,082,712 332,624 103,296 1,518,632 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION  88,849 27,571 - - 8,864 125,284 

DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY  - - - - - -

TOTAL EXPENSES  1,581,357 551,830 7,355,096 

NET INCOME  647,399 (463,204)  - - (170,608)  13,587 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

CY Per Pupil Rate 

CSI: 
This line should show how many students a school
intends to be paid for. 

For Example: 
If a school plans on enrollment of 100 students
however is budgeting to only receive 95% of those 
students, 95 should be entered in in this row.CSI: 

Enter in the Per Pupil Rate (PPR) 
for the Current Year (CY). 

For Example: 
If this application is being 
submitted in 2009-10 for a school 
opening in 2011-12, enter in the 
2009-10 PPR for that district in 
the cells below.  If a higher PPR is 
assumed indicate that % increase 
in the ASSUMPTION column. 
Refer to the State Aid website for 
the tuition rates. 
https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/ 

CSI: 
Cafeteria 
Other 

CSI: 
Health and Dental 
Social Security 
Medicare 
Unemployment 
Other 

CSI: 
Janitorial 
Consultants 
- Assessment 
- Technology 
- Other 

Security 
Background Screening 
Public Relations 

CSI: 
Development 
Conferences 

CSI: 
Curriculum 

CSI: 
Instructional 
Non-Instructional 
Athletic 
Music 
Office Equipment 
* Includes the Purchase or 
Lease of any of the above 

CSI: 
Hardware 
Software 
Internet 
Wiring 
Other CSI: 

Uniforms 
Special Events
CSI: 
Printing 
Postage 
Copying 
All Other 

CSI: 
Conferences 

CSI: 
Interest 
Bank Charges 
Bad Debt 
Misc. Fees (i.e. Licensing) 
Dues & Membership 
All Other 
(If any questions contact CSI) 

CSI: 
Facility 
Equipmen 
t 

CSI: 
Facility Related 
* Includes the Purchase or 
Lease of any equipment

CSI: 
Electric 
Gas 
Other 

CSI: 
$75,000 should be set aside for Dissolution and it can 
be spread out over the first THREE years if the school 
chooses.  If spread out each year should minimally be 
$25k.  

A ote can be added under assumptions describing the 

Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 

CSI: 

 No. of Positions Sample titles that fall under this line: CSI: 

1.00 130,000 

- -

3.00 242,063 

- Head of School 
- Superintendant 
- School Leader 
- Executive Director 
- CEO 

Sample titles that fall under this line: 
- Principal 
- Vice-Principal 
- Assistant Principal 

CSI: 
Sample titles that fall under this line:
Director, Deans, Coordinators of: 
- Curriculum 

- -

1.00 -

- Chief Academic Officer - Instruction 
- Faculty 

CSI: 
Sample titles that fall under this line:
- Students - Secretary 

6.50 93,146- Assessment 
- Student Affairs 
- Student Achievement 
- Development 

- Receptionist 
- Attendance Clerk 
- Office Manager 

CSI: 
Sample titles that fall under this line:
Content/Subject Area Teachers: 

- ELA 
28.00 1,553,952 

-
- Math 
- Social Studies 6.00 

- -

2.00 88,757 

- ScienceCSI: 
Sample titles that fall under this line:
- ESL 

6.50 339,210 

- -

1.00 -

- 171,538 

- Reading 
- Math and/or Literacy Specialists 
- Art 
- PE 
- Music 

CSI: 
Sample titles that fall under this line:
- Speech Therapists 
- Social Workers 

- -

- -

- Foreign Languages 
- Photography 
- Ceramics 



students, 95 should be entered in in this row.CSI:
Enter in the Per Pupil Rate (PPR) 
for the Current Year (CY). 

For Example:
If this application is being 
submitted in 2009-10 for a school 
opening in 2011-12, enter in the 
2009-10 PPR for that district in 
the cells below.  If a higher PPR is 
assumed indicate that % increase 
in the ASSUMPTION column. 
Refer to the State Aid website for 
the tuition rates. 
https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/

CSI:
$75,000 should be set aside for Dissolution and it can 
be spread out over the first THREE years if the school 
chooses.  If spread out each year should minimally be 
$25k.  
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Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2016-2017  Assumptions 

July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10.

 OTHER  FUNDRAISING TOTAL

 Total Revenue 5,869,308 1,118,153 - - 381,222 7,368,683 

 Total Expenses  5,221,909 1,581,357 - - 551,830 7,355,096 
 Net Income 647,399 (463,204)  - - (170,608)  13,587 

 Actual Student Enrollment 378 73 378 

 Total Paid Student Enrollment - - -

 SUPPORT SERVICES 

 FUNDRA SING  TOTAL 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

CSI: 
This line should show how many students a school
intends to be paid for. 

For Example: 
If a school plans on enrollment of 100 students
however is budgeting to only receive 95% of those 

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries* 

District of Location  378 73 378 

School District 2 (Enter Name)  -

School District 3 (Enter Name)  -

School District 4 (Enter Name)  -

School District 5 (Enter Name)  -

TOTAL ENROLLMENT  378 73 378 

REVENUE PER PUPIL  15,527 15,317 -

EXPENSES PER PUPIL  13,815 21,662 -

TOTAL ENROLLED 

A note can be added under assumptions describing the 
breakout. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

Board of Trustees 
Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Harlem Hebrew Language 
Academy Charter School, which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 
2016 and 2015, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows 
for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

Auditors and Consultants 655 Third Avenue, 12th Floor, New York, NY 10017 
Serving the HealthCare & Not for Profit Sectors (212) 867-4000/ Fax (212)867-9810 / www.loebandtroper.com 
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2.
 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School as of June 30, 
2016 and 2015, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
October 14, 2016 on our consideration of Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter 
School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Harlem 
Hebrew Language Academy Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

October 14, 2016 



 

EXHIBIT A
 

HARLEM HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL
 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
 

JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
 

2016 2015 

ASSETS 

Current assets 
Cash 
Grants and contracts receivable 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 

$ 118,475 
287,278 

42,438 

$ 212,165 
63,861 

183,497 

Total current assets 448,191 459,523 

Noncurrent assets 
Cash - reserves (Note 2) 
Fixed assets - net (Note 3) 

75,104 
490,588 

50,037 
186,761 

Total assets $ 1,013,883 $ 696,321 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Current liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued salaries and related liabilities 
Refundable advances (Note 2) 

$ 183,789 
358,350 

$ 154,822 
293,741 

46,163 

Total liabilities 542,139 494,726 

Net assets - unrestricted (Exhibit B) 471,744 201,595 

Total liabilities and net assets $ 1,013,883 $ 696,321 

See independent auditor's report.
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
 



EXHIBIT B
 

HARLEM HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL
 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
 

2016 2015 

Operating revenues 
State and local per-pupil operating revenues 
Government grants and contracts 
Foundations and corporate contributions 
In-kind contributions (Note 4) 
Other revenues 

$ 5,100,388 
555,393 
360,513 
201,885 

32,132 

$ 3,610,762 
372,035 
402,357 
147,242 

50,806 

Total operating revenues 6,250,311 4,583,202 

Operating expenses 
Program services 

General education 
Special education 

4,393,169 
1,038,383 

3,562,356 
500,301 

Total program services 5,431,552 4,062,657 

Supporting services 
Management and general 548,610 491,378 

Total operating expenses (Exhibit C) 5,980,162 4,554,035 

Change in unrestricted net assets (Exhibit D) 270,149 29,167 

Net assets - unrestricted - beginning of year 201,595 172,428 

Net assets - unrestricted - end of year (Exhibit A) $ 471,744 $ 201,595 

See independent auditor's report.
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
 



   

 

    

 

 
 

   

   
 
  

   
  
  
  
  

 
  

 
    

 

HARLEM HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL EXHIBIT C 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015 

No. of 
Positions 

General 
Education 

Program 
Services 

2016 

Special 
Education 

Supporting 
Services 

Management 
and General Total 

Administrative staff personnel 
Instructional personnel 
Non-instructional personnel 

5 
39 
4 

$ 108,875 
1,991,826 

78,172 

$ 16,750 
459,237 

23,123 

$ 253,589 $ 379,214 
2,451,063 

101,295 

Total salaries and staff 48 2,178,873 499,110 253,589 2,931,572 

Payroll taxes and employee benefits 
Occupancy (Note 7) 
Contracted services 
Recruitment 
Supplies and equipment 
Student meal program 
Student field trips 
Repairs and maintenance 
Printing and postage 
Professional fees 
Dues and subscription 
Insurance 
Telephone and internet 
In-kind rent and services (Note 4) 
Staff travel 
Depreciation 

512,804 
748,244 
169,034 

40,229 
173,139 
147,025 

1,701 
84,820 

3,298 
71,379 

830 
21,677 
19,490 

150,050 

70,576 

117,467 
171,398 

47,194 
11,767 
50,763 
43,489 

503 
19,429 

755 
16,350 

190 
4,965 
4,465 

34,371 

16,167 

59,683 
87,085 

4,891 
231 

19,069 

9,872 
384 

83,074 
97 

2,523 
2,268 

17,464 
166 

8,214 

689,954 
1,006,727 

221,119 
52,227 

242,971 
190,514 

2,204 
114,121 

4,437 
170,803 

1,117 
29,165 
26,223 

201,885 
166 

94,957 

Total expenses $ 4,393,169 $ 1,038,383 $ 548,610 $ 5,980,162 

-continued-



   

 

    

 

 
 

   

   
 
  

   
  
  
  
  

 
  

 
    

 

  

     

HARLEM HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

EXHIBIT C 
-2-

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015 

No. of 
Positions 

General 
Education 

Program 
Services 

2015 

Special 
Education 

Supporting 
Services 

Management 
and General Total 

Administrative staff personnel 
Instructional personnel 
Non-instructional personnel 

4 
27 
4 

$ 102,375 
1,542,655 

75,504 

$ 15,750 
181,461 

17,586 

$ 229,299 $ 347,424 
1,724,116 

93,090 

Total salaries and staff 35 1,720,534 214,797 229,299 2,164,630 

Payroll taxes and employee benefits 
Occupancy (Note 7) 
Contracted services 
Recruitment 
Supplies and equipment 
Student meal program 
Student field trips 
Repairs and maintenance 
Printing and postage 
Professional fees 
Dues and subscription 
Insurance 
Telephone and internet 
In-kind rent and services (Note 4) 
Staff travel 
Depreciation 

409,789 
623,484 
143,679 

55,300 
160,325 
121,702 

9,091 
83,628 

1,463 
28,906 

480 
20,070 
17,255 

118,520 

48,130 

51,159 
77,838 
29,431 
12,355 
36,475 
28,347 

2,118 
10,440 

183 
3,609 

60 
2,506 
2,155 

22,819 

6,009 

54,613 
83,091 

6,262 
647 

17,675 

11,145 
195 

69,229 
64 

2,675 
2,300 
5,903 
1,866 
6,414 

515,561 
784,413 
179,372 

68,302 
214,475 
150,049 

11,209 
105,213 

1,841 
101,744 

604 
25,251 
21,710 

147,242 
1,866 

60,553 

Total expenses $ 3,562,356 $ 500,301 $ 491,378 $ 4,554,035 

See independent auditor's report.
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
 



EXHIBIT D
 

HARLEM HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL
 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
 

2016 2015 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Change in net assets (Exhibit B) 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to 

net cash provided by operating activities 
Depreciation 
Decrease (increase) in assets 

Grants and contracts receivable 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 

Increase in liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued salaries and related liabilities 
Refundable advances 

$ 270,149 

94,957 

(223,417) 
141,059 

28,967 
64,609 

(46,163) 

$ 29,167 

60,553 

9,513 
(143,341) 

77,081 
98,358 
46,163 

Net cash provided by operating activities 330,161 177,494 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Fixed asset acquisitions 
Increase in cash reserves 

(398,784) 
(25,067) 

(82,117) 
(25,037) 

Net cash used by investing activities (423,851) (107,154) 

Net change in cash (93,690) 70,340 

Cash - beginning of year 212,165 141,825 

Cash - end of year $ 118,475 $ 212,165 

See independent auditor's report.
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
 



 
  

 
  

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

    

       
       

       
          

         
      

    
         

            
   

          
 

      

      

         
          

      
      

   

       
 

       
 

           
            

 

          
      

   

    

  

HARLEM HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
 

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF ORGANIZATION
 

Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School (HHLA) is an educational corporation that 
operates as a charter school in the Borough of Manhattan, New York. On July 12, 2012, the Board 
of Regents and the Board of Trustees of the University of the State of New York, on behalf of the 
State Education Department, granted HHLA a charter valid for a term of 5 years and renewable 
upon expiration. HHLA was organized to provide its students with the strong academic and 
personal foundation necessary to be ethical and informed global citizens and to develop a strong 
sense of social and civic responsibility. This is accomplished through an academically rigorous K-
5 curriculum which includes integration of service learning and community service across the 
curriculum. In fiscal years 2016 and 2015, HHLA operated classes for 290 students in grades K-3 
and 212 students in grades K-2, respectively. HHLA opened the school on August 26, 2013. 

HHLA is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. 
HHLA is supported primarily by state and local per-pupil operating revenues. 

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of accounting - The financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. 

Use of estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues 
and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Cash - reserves - Deposits represent funds held aside for contingency purposes as required by the 
New York City Department of Education. 

Allowance for doubtful accounts - Bad debt expense is charged if a receivable is determined to 
be uncollectible based on periodic review by management.  Factors used to determine whether an 
allowance should be recorded include the age of the receivable and a review of payments 
subsequent to year end. Management has determined that no allowance is necessary as of June 30, 
2016. 

Fixed assets - Fixed assets are recorded at cost. Items with a cost of $1,000 or more with an 
estimated useful life of greater than one year are capitalized. Depreciation and amortization are 
provided on the straight-line basis over the estimated following useful lives of assets: 

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 - 7 years 

-continued-



 
  

 
  

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

   

      
              

 

        
 

            
            

      
 

       
    

         
       

  

      
       

       
         

       
       

         
       

     
 

     

         
 

        
       

     
    

 

  

2. 
HARLEM HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
 

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Accrued salaries and related liabilities - Accrued salaries and related liabilities consist of payroll 
and merit pay earned by staff during the school year but paid out over the summer months and/or 
following fiscal year. 

Refundable advances - Advances represent funds received from government agencies for the 
following year’s programs. 

State and local per-pupil revenues - Revenues from the state and local governments in accordance 
with HHLA’s charter status is based on the number of students enrolled and are recorded when 
services are performed in accordance with the charter agreement. These funds are recorded by 
HHLA when services are rendered. 

Government grants and contract revenues and receivables - Revenues from government grants 
and contracts to which HHLA is entitled are recognized primarily on student enrollment. Some 
grants are provided for specific educational endeavors which are not based on student enrollment 
and are recorded when related expenditures are incurred by HHLA. Receivables are recorded when 
the revenue is earned. 

Contributions - Unconditional contributions, including promises to give cash and other assets, are 
reported at fair value at the date the contribution is received. All contributions are considered to 
be available for unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by the donors. The gifts are reported 
as temporarily or permanently restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that 
limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated 
time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are 
reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets 
released from restrictions. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met within the 
same year as received are reported as unrestricted contributions in the accompanying financial 
statements. 

In-kind contributions - In-kind contributions are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. 

Unrestricted net assets - Unrestricted net assets include funds having no restrictions as to use or 
purpose imposed by donors. 

Functional allocation of expenses - The costs of providing the programs and other activities of 
HHLA have been summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities, which include 
all expenses incurred for the year. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the 
programs and supporting services benefited. Such allocations are determined by management in 
accordance with grant provisions and/or other equitable bases.  

-continued-



 
  

 
  

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

     

        
        

    

       
       

     

       
   

  

   
   

       
       

   
       

       
   
       

     

        
      

       
       

      
  

     

          
         

           
   

3. 
HARLEM HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
 

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Fundraising - Fundraising services are performed by volunteers (primarily the Board of Trustees). 
No amounts are reflected in the accompanying financial statements for such services as they do 
not meet the criteria for recognition as contributions. 

Uncertainty in income taxes - HHLA has determined that there are no material uncertain tax 
positions that require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements. Periods ending June 30, 
2013 and subsequent remain subject to examination by applicable taxing authorities. 

Subsequent events - Subsequent events have been evaluated through October 14, 2016, which is 
the date the financial statements were available to be issued. 

NOTE 3 - FIXED ASSETS 

2016 2015 

Furniture, fixtures and equipment $ 430,046 $ 291,127 
Construction in progress 259,865 

689,911 291,127 
Accumulated depreciation (199,323) (104,366) 

$ 490,588 $ 186,761 

NOTE 4 - IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS 

In-kind contributions were from two not-for-profit organizations, Friends of Hebrew Language 
Academy Charter Schools, Inc. and Hebrew Public. Friends of Hebrew Language Academy 
Charter School’s contribution consisted of occupancy costs of $56,775 and $55,708 in 2016 and 
2015, respectively. In addition, certain personnel services are paid for directly by Hebrew Public 
in the amount of $145,130 and $91,534 in 2016 and 2015, respectively. Total in-kind contributions 
amounted to $201,885 and $147,242 in 2016 and 2015, respectively. 

NOTE 5 - PENSION PLAN 

HHLA has a defined contribution retirement plan which covers substantially all full-time 
employees. HHLA contributed a dollar-to-dollar match up to 3% of the employees’ compensation. 
Pension expense under this plan was $58,572 and $52,238 for the employer match and $1,875 and 
$2,935 for administrative fees in 2016 and 2015, respectively. 

-continued-



 
  

 
  

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

     

       
         

         
   

  

          
  

          
 

  

         
                 
     

 

    
    
    
    

    
  
    

   

     
      

    
 

4. 
HARLEM HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015 

NOTE 6 - CONTINGENCIES AND CONCENTRATIONS 

Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by the funding sources. Such audits might 
result in disallowances of costs submitted for reimbursement. Management is of the opinion that 
such cost disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the accompanying financial 
statements. Accordingly, no amounts have been provided in the accompanying financial 
statements for such potential claims. 

Financial instruments that potentially subject HHLA to a concentration of credit risk are cash 
accounts with financial institutions in excess of FDIC insurance limits.  

A significant portion of HHLA’s operating revenue is paid by the New York City Department of 
Education. 

NOTE 7 - LEASE COMMITMENT 

HHLA entered into a noncancelable lease as of July 1, 2015 which will expire on June 30, 2033. 
Rent for each term will be determined by mutual agreement each year. For the years ended June 30, 
2016 and 2015, rent expense amounted to $950,000 and $700,000, respectively. Future minimum 
payments are as follows: 

2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
Thereafter 

$ 1,160,000 
1,160,000 
1,160,000 
1,160,000 

15,080,000 

$ 19,720,000 

NOTE 8 - CHARTER MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATION 

On January 6, 2016, HHLA entered into an educational services agreement with a charter 
management organization (“CMO”) to provide expertise necessary to effectively provide essential 
programming and services to the charter school. The agreement continues through June 30, 2018. 
The expense for 2016 amounted to $60,000. 
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

and on Compliance and Other Matters Based
 

on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
 
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

Board of Trustees 
Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School, which comprise the 
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, and the related statements of 
activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 14, 2016. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Harlem 
Hebrew Language Academy Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting 
(internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter 
School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Auditors and Consultants 655 Third Avenue, 12th Floor, New York, NY 10017 
Serving the HealthCare & Not for Profit Sectors (212) 867-4000/ Fax (212)867-9810 / www.loebandtroper.com 

http:www.loebandtroper.com


 

 

 

 
       

   
   

       
  

 

     
       

   
     

    
    

       
 

 

          
     

  
   

    
  

 
 
 

  

2. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during 
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Harlem Hebrew Language Academy 
Charter School’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

October 14, 2016 
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Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School has worked diligently towards meeting targets in 

2015-2016 to attract and retain enrollment of students with disabilities, English language learners, and 

students who are eligible for free and reduced priced lunch. At the school level we have implemented 

an aggressive recruitment plan which includes managing all internal and external communication 

including website, newsletter, school brochures, community outreach efforts and student reenrollment 

campaigns. We are passionate about informing our families of our rigorous academic model which 

includes a unique dual-language immersion program. Our student enrollment campaign includes 

outreach at local daycare and community recreation centers to inform families of our program. We 

developed a comprehensive brochure outlining our academic and extracurricular programs that are 

made available online and distributed to local businesses and community centers. Quarterly, we 

complete mass mailings to targeted areas to heighten awareness about our academic model. 

Additionally, we place advertisements in over a dozen local neighborhood newspapers and have our 

school based operations team members connecting with families at multiple targeted spots in the local 

neighborhood. Please see below for the list of advertisers we used during school year 2015-2016. 

Color Print Ad Recruitment: 
Big Apple Parent 
Manhattan Family Magazine 
NY Family Magazine 
Gay Parent Magazine 
West Side Spirit Newspaper 
Our Town Uptown Newspaper 
NY Amsterdam News 
Yediot 
DNA Info 

Online Recruitment 
NY Jewish Parenting Guide (http://newyorkjewishparentingguide.com) 
Dedicated microsite & rotating banner ad 
2 E-Blasts to 20,000 viewers with link to our website 

Brochure Distribution 
DOE Mailing 
Targeted Zip Codes 
16,000 plus brochures 
Newspaper Inserts (our brochure inserted into newspapers) 
NY Amsterdam News - 6,000 
West Side Spirit - 5,000 
Our Town Uptown - 5,000 

Promoters 
AM New York 01/11 
3,000 
2/3 Line at: 66th, 72nd, 96th & 116th street stops 
AM New York 01/18 
3,000 
B/C Line at: 72nd, 86th, 96th & 110th street stops 

http://newyorkjewishparentingguide.com/
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Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School
�

2016-17 Academic Calendar
�

Tuesday First Day of School 

9/6/16 (regular school day for 
all) 

Thursday Back to School Night 

9/8/16 6:00-8:00 

Monday 10/3/16- Rosh Hashanah 
Tuesday 10/4/16 

(school closed) 

Monday Columbus Day 

10/10/16 (school closed) 

Tuesday Half Day: 12 noon 

10/11/16 
dismissal 

(Prof. Development for staff) 

Wednesday Yom Kippur 

10/12/16 (school closed) 

Tuesday Election Day 

11/8/16 (school closed for students) 

Friday Veterans Day 

11/11/16 (school closed) 

Friday Save the date! 

11/18/16 Fall at Harlem Hebrew 

8:15 a.m. 

Wednesday Half Day: 

11/23/16 12 noon dismissal 

(Prof. Development for staff) 

Thursday Thanksgiving Break 
11/24/16-

(school closed) 
Friday 11/25/16 

Monday Half Day: 12 noon 

11/28/16 
dismissal 

(Parent Teacher conferences
�

Monday 2/20/17- Midwinter Recess 

Friday 2/24/17 (school closed) 

Friday Half Day: 12 noon 

3/17/17 
dismissal 

(Prof. Development for staff) 

Monday Half Day: 12 noon 

3/20/17 
dismissal 

(Parent Teacher conferences 
12-7:00) 

Tuesday 3/28/17 – Grade 3-4 
Thursday 3/30/17 

NYS ELA Assessment 

Monday 4/10/17 – Spring Recess 

Tuesday 4/18/17 (school closed – school 
resumes 4/19/17) 

Tuesday 5/2/17 – Grades 3-4 

Thursday 5/4/17 NYS Math Assessment 

Friday Israel Day Celebration 

5/19/17 

Monday Memorial Day 

5/29/17 (School Closed) 

Tuesday Half Day: 12 noon 

6/27/17 
dismissal 

(Parent Teacher conferences 
12-7:00) 

Wednesday LAST DAY OF SCHOOL 

6/28/17 12 NOON DISMISSAL 
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Monday 12/26/16
�
–
�

Monday 1/2/17
�

Friday
�

1/13/17
�

Monday 

1/16/17 

12-7:00)
�

Winter Recess
�

(school closed – school
�
resumes 1/3/17)
�

Half Day: 12 noon
�
dismissal
�

(Prof. Development for staff)
�

Dr. Martin Luther King Jr.
�
Day
�

(school closed)
�

NOTES:_______________________________
�

This calendar was adopted by the Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School’s Board of Trustees at a regular 
public meeting, following normal public notice on May 4, 2016. 
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